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» ABOUT THIS REPORT

This annual report details State Trustees Limited’s business performance for the 2014/15 
financial year. 

It also reviews performance against strategic objectives and records financial performance 
in accordance with the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act 1994 and other 
regulatory requirements.

Copies of the annual report are available from www.statetrustees.com.au.

» CONTENTS
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> Purpose

> Vision 

> Values 

> Role 

Be relevant, accessible and valued in the hearts and minds of Victorians. 

Help Victorians with their financial needs so they can make the most  
of their opportunities. 

The functions of State Trustees outlined in the State Trustees (State Owned Company) 
Act 1994 are to provide Victorians with:

• trustee services for government and individuals;

• personal administration services;

• deceased estate administration;

•  specialised legal, financial and tax services including will writing, establishing 
enduring power of attorneys, financial planning, managing compensation funds, 
genealogy services and trust administration; and

• funds management services and investment products.

Wholehearted – committed, caring and united.

Understanding – empathetic and compassionate.

Commercial – professional, expert and client driven.

Integrity – ethical and trusted.

» ABOUT STATE TRUSTEES

Our earlier history dates back to 1852 when we began administering deceased estates 
and in 1867 we began managing the financial and legal affairs of people who are 
unable to do so, due to disability, mental illness or other circumstance.

State Trustees was a statutory corporation within the Victorian public sector before  
it became a State government owned company in 1994. Today, State Trustees 
operates as a commercialised entity from offices in Footscray, Bendigo and 
Dandenong. State Trustees’ principal objective outlined in its constitution  
is to perform functions for the public benefit by:

•  Operating its business and pursuing its undertakings as efficiently as possible 
consistently with prudent commercial practice; and

• Maximising its contribution to the economy and wellbeing of the State of Victoria.

State Trustees is the Public 
Trustee for Victoria. State 
Trustees and its predecessors 
have been serving the Victorian 
community for over 75 years.



s e r v i c e s

Financial planning advice provided for 5,842 matters.

Examination of 5,833 private administrators accounts.

Completed 3,916 tax returns.

Trust administration for 2,861 trusts. 

Preparation of 2,117 consultative wills. 

preparation of 914 enduring power of attorney documents for financial, medical treatment and guardianship.

Completed 611 genealogy searches.

client legal opened 267 new legal matters.

1,028 Online will kit sales 

251 online enduring power 
of attorney kit sales 

products launched on 
24 November 2014

products launched on 
1 November 2014

instructed 
property sales.

Deceased estate administration for 1,298 clients including in 
circumstances of intestacy and as administrators of last resort.

Maximised Australian and overseas pension entitlements and centerlink 
benefits for approximately 9,000 clients.

Tribunal appointed financial administration for over 10,000 clients.

attorney services for 554 clients.
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Property related asset 
management on behalf 
of our clients.

1,564 
properties

276 

Free and secure storage of will 
documents in the State Trustees will 

bank for over 80,000 Victorians

= 10,000 victorians

of discretionary grants from the State Trustees Australia 
Foundation charitable trust Administered and distributed.

client assets under 
management and trusteeship.

$800,000

$1.9 billion
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5,381 retail will kit sales 

1,130 retail enduring power 
of attorney kit sales 

statutory declaration kit sales of

since this product launched 
on 1 November 2014.
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> Services During 2014/15 State Trustees provided the following products and services.
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» REPORT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Throughout the year our focus was increasingly on clients, placing the client at the 
centre of all decision making through developing our people, improving our internal 
culture and enhancing our systems and processes to ensure we continue to act  
in the clients best interests.

This focus is consistent with our strategic intent which is to provide a predictably  
good client experience, for all clients, irrespective of the product or service type.  
In part, we achieve this by actively seeking ways to continuously improve our  
service delivery and investing in what will truly make a difference to our clients,  
employees and stakeholders.

Our success this year is further reflected in our corporate scorecard with each 
performance indicator being exceeded. I am pleased to report that we have 
outperformed against our client feedback target, culture and advocacy targets  
and we also achieved a profit before tax of $5.5m against a target of $2.2m.  
Our achievements in 2014/15 provide a solid foundation for service delivery  
in 2015/16 as we continue our journey towards becoming a world leading  
Trustee Company.

Our three year strategy focuses on: 

•  building employee pride through a constructive culture, further strengthen 
competence and talent whilst retaining the best people; 

•  continuing to build client trust by acting in their best interests, whilst providing  
a consistent, seamless service, delivering on our service promises, and continuing  
to innovate to improve the client experience;

•  building enterprise value by ensuring that the organisations financial sustainability 
continues to be strengthened through our commercial activities whilst looking  
for opportunities to further reduce costs in order to provide our services at the  
lowest possible price. 

Our strategy is described across three strategic pillars: Pride, Trust and Value. 

Pride concentrates on ensuring our employees have pride in State Trustees,  
are trained and competent to deliver on client promises and understand  
their accountabilities.

Trust centres on providing clients with the services they value and ensuring  
the client is at the heart of everything we do.

Value aims to provide measurable and sustainable mutually beneficial outcomes  
for our clients, our key partnering organisations and State Trustees.

In my first full financial year  
as Chief Executive Officer, a role 
I am humbled and honored to 
hold, I am pleased to report  
on the outstanding year that 
State Trustees has delivered  
for the Victorian community.

>  Constructive culture and  
employee advocacy 

>  Emerging leaders 

For the past three years our cultural enhancement program has changed the way  
our employees interact with each other and clients. The culture program is made up  
of a series of workshops specifically designed to engage all employees in State 
Trustees’ vision, preferred culture and to build advocacy. 

We want our people to love what they do and to demonstrate their support for 
State Trustees through their words and actions. In 2015 our culture measurement 
demonstrated that we have improved and are moving towards our desired culture, 
with a significant improvement in employee advocacy. This is important because  
our employees have the greatest influence on enhancing the client experience  
and advocating our products and services.

During 2014/15 the emerging leaders program included employees seeking to 
develop leadership qualities, become positive influencers and cultural change agents. 
The program is designed to improve self-awareness and resilience, help participants 
engage in change, improve how people facilitate challenging conversations, enhance 
team work and collaboration and improve engagement and morale.

PRIDE
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>  Australian Guardianship and  
Administration Council (AGAC) 

>  Alzheimer’s Australia Vic 

>  Lake Tyers Aboriginal Trust 

>  Payments processing automated

>  Single insurance provider established

>  Regional service model 

State Trustees is committed to upholding a suite of standards that are collectively 
known as the Australian Guardianship and Administration Council (AGAC) national 
standards. These national standards set out the obligations expressed in the 
Guardianship and Administration Act 1986 (Vic) and clearly articulate a standard  
of responsible and accountable service delivery to the most financially vulnerable 
members of our community. Most importantly the standards guarantee that we 
continue to act in the best interest of our clients. To ensure adherence to the 
standards, in 2014/15 we initiated an updated quality assurance program to monitor 
our ability to demonstrate effective management of client’s financial and legal affairs.

In May 2015 an important partnership between State Trustees and Alzheimer’s 
Australia Vic was established. The partnership will further educate professionals  
from both organisations, who work with Australians, to understand dementia and  
to help identify and prevent financial elder abuse – an issue of great importance  
to both our organisations.

With State Trustees and Alzheimer’s Australia Vic jointly addressing this issue, we will 
create greater awareness, learning and understanding within the community and also 
create opportunities for employees of both organisations to understand the impact 
of dementia-related illnesses, and identify abuse to create safeguards for elders and 
their families.

In Victoria, the Aboriginal Lands Act 1970 established the Lake Tyers and Framlingham 
Aboriginal Land Trusts. This enabled Lake Tyers and Framlingham Reserve lands to be 
held in Trust by Aboriginal people who were residing in the area covered by the Trust. 
A register of members as shareholders was established in 1971. Over time this register 
had become outdated. In 2014/15 State Trustees was engaged by the Department  
of Premier and Cabinet (DPC) to identify and confirm living members on the register. 
Due to our expertise in genealogy searches we secured a contract with DPC to review 
and update the register.

During 2014/15 we outsourced the majority of client payment processing  
for over 300,000 invoices which we pay on behalf of our clients each year.  
This automated service has delivered significant improvements to the client 
experience, internal productivity, overall invoice payment times and further  
reducing risk and client concerns. 

In December 2014 we introduced new insurance arrangements that automatically 
insures all new statutory appointed clients for a period of 60 days. This protects  
new client assets until appropriate insurance cover can be confirmed. The State 
Trustees insurance arrangement has also led to lower insurance costs in comparison 
to the previous provider.

In July 2014, we finalised our regionalisation strategy with the relocation of our  
head office from Exhibition Street, Melbourne to a new 5 star, Green Star building  
at 1 McNab Avenue, Footscray. The transition of employees, equipment and 
infrastructure was significant, with no disruption experienced by clients or employees. 
State Trustees now has offices in Footscray, Bendigo and Dandenong and provides  
a rotational will writing service in various locations across Victoria. 

TRUST

VALUE

>  World’s Best program To support our aspiration to become a world leading Trustee Company, we developed 
a program to stimulate, inform and engage a cross section of our employees to explore 
and share what it takes to become a world leader. The World’s Best program provides  
a forum for employees to consider what World’s Best means and how it can be applied 
to aspects of their own job. 
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» REPORT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

>  Will and power of attorney kits  
online and retail launch

>  Refreshed State Trustees website 

State Trustees has been selling online will and power of attorney kits since  
24 November 2014. To broaden our reach we commenced a trial on 1 November  
2014 selling retail will kits, power of attorney kits, and statutory declaration forms 
from Australia Post stores throughout Victoria. In launching these products we  
have provided the consumer with a do-it-yourself option that is easy to complete  
and affordable. 

We launched our refreshed website in May 2015 to support our client-focused 
approach. A fresh design, new engaging content, user-friendly navigation  
and integration with our systems provide major enhancements for the people 
accessing and using our site. It also reflects our commitment to finding more  
efficient and effective ways of communicating with our current and prospective  
clients through sophisticated integration with our sales and client contact systems. 
The State Trustees website will continue to evolve to ensure that people can easily 
access the information they want from us and interactions are as easy as possible. 

In closing, I would like to acknowledge State Trustees Chair and Director Dino Georgiou who announced his resignation in June  
2015 as a result of increased responsibilities in his executive role. Dino, a Director of State Trustees since 2011 and our Chair since 
June 2014 has been an active and engaged Chair who has made a substantial contribution to the overall growth and development 
of State Trustees as a commercial organisation. I would like to thank Dino for all his support of State Trustees, the Executive and our 
terrific employees. I wish Dino all the very best for the future. I would also like to acknowledge Lindsay Smith and Patrick Burroughs 
who both retired from the Board in 2015 after three and seven years of dedicated service to the organisation respectively. Each of 
the retiring Directors have enabled this organisation to realise its goals and I thank each of them for their support and guidance.

Following Dino’s resignation, Sue O’Connor was announced as State Trustees’ Chair pending the appointment of a replacement.  
Sue is an experienced Chair and Director and joined the State Trustees Board in December 2013. Sue is a passionate advocate  
for State Trustees and I look forward to working with her during this period as Chair.

As Chief Executive Officer, I have been fortunate to have had an engaged, active and supportive Board who I acknowledge  
and thank for their support and guidance. I would also like to acknowledge and thank the capable and impressive Executive Team  
I have the privilege of leading. I thank each of them and all our employees for their support, dedication and focus on our clients  
as we realise becoming a world leading Trustee Company. 

Craig Dent 
Chief Executive Officer
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» REPORT FROM THE CHAIR

State Trustees is an organisation with the objective of becoming a world leading 
Trustee Company. To achieve this goal, requires great vision, clear focus on 
understanding and meeting the needs of our clients in a financially sustainable 
manner, courage, discipline and unremitting commitment to always looking  
to improve our organisation and the services that we provide. State Trustees  
is well progressed in its journey to deliver on its vision. 

I am pleased to advise that in 2014/15, State Trustees has outperformed against all 
corporate targets. This performance is a direct result of the hard work of employees 
and management under the fine leadership of our CEO Craig Dent and his Executive 
Team. The Board thanks them for their commitment, performance and focus.

During 2014/15 State Trustees successfully completed a number of projects including 
outsourcing client payment processing, upgrading the State Trustees website and 
introducing a corporate procurement system. Each of these projects enables us 
to improve the quality of service we provide to our customers at a reduced cost. 
Additionally the move of our head office to Footscray was successfully completed  
and another step in our goal of getting even closer to our customers. 

We have also identified a need for people appointed as executors to receive  
additional support to help them successfully administer deceased estates whilst 
retaining their role as executor. We have commenced a pilot of an executor assist 
service to meet this need. 

I would like to thank our clients and partners for the confidence they have shown in us. 
In particular Alzheimer’s Australia Vic, Carers Victoria and Maribyrnong City Council. 

In June 2015, the Board approved State Trustees’ Corporate Strategy for the three year 
period from 2015/16 to 2017/18. Included is a major business process reengineering 
program focussed on ensuring all business processes are designed end-to-end to be 
client centric with the aim to enhance the client experience and improve efficiency.

During this year, a number of personnel changes occurred at Board level. After being 
appointed as Chair on 5 June 2014 and successfully leading State Trustees over the 
year, due to increased responsibilities in his executive role, Dino Georgiou resigned 
as Chair on 30 June 2015. I thank Dino for his leadership and input over the past four 
years both as Director and Chair. I would also like to acknowledge Lindsay Smith  
and Patrick Burroughs for their leadership, support and guidance during their time 
on the Board. They have both been instrumental in the success of the transformation 
journey to date.

Over the past 12 months State Trustees has delivered on its commitment to becoming 
a world leading Trustee Company. Whilst we understand the size of the task, we look 
forward to the future with confidence.

Sue O’Connor 
Chair

It is a great privilege to hold 
the position of Interim Chair of 
State Trustees after the recent 
retirement of Director and Chair 
Dino Georgiou and report on the 
performance of the organisation 
over the past 12 months. 
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» PERFORMANCE TO PLAN

The Corporate performance of State Trustees is measured against key performance 
indicators outlined in the 2014/15 corporate scorecard. In 2014/15 State Trustees 
performed above all targets. 
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» IN THE COMMUNITY

State Trustees CONNECTED Art Exhibition is an annual exhibition for emerging 
Victorian artists with a disability or experience of mental illness to showcase  
and potentially sell their work. Held at Federation Square from 16 October 2014  
to 28 October 2014, the exhibition celebrated its 12th year with 152 exhibiting  
artists shortlisted from 392 entries. 

Congratulations to first prize winner Julian Martin, second prize winner Jamie Dawes, 
third prize winner Gwenda Emond, People’s Choice winner Justine Martin and Office  
of the Public Advocate prize winner Kim Anderson.

In August 2014, the State Trustees Australia Foundation (STAF) celebrated 20 years of 
operation. STAF is a public charitable trust administered by State Trustees. Established 
in August 1994, the foundation provides both large strategic and small grassroots 
grants programs annually, thanks to the generous bequests and donations from 
the community. Grants are paid each year from the proceeds of the foundation’s 
investments with endorsement from an independent advisory panel and approval 
from the State Trustees Board.

This financial year, STAF distributed approximately $2.5 million for charitable 
purposes, with $800,000 granted to 33 well-deserving projects making a difference  
to vulnerable communities across Victoria.

Wholehearted Giving is the State Trustees workplace giving program where 
employees choose to have donations to Wholehearted Giving deducted from  
their pay to fund three local charities each year. In 2014/15 three charities were 
funded $4,000 each.

In Dandenong, funding was provided to Wellsprings for Women to kick-start the 
Wellsprings garden wellbeing project. This will provide a functional and raised garden 
bed for easy access and other small amenities to make a safe refuge when women  
and their children need outdoor respite.

In Bendigo, Compeer is a program of St Vincent de Paul Society that supports 
intentional friendships for people who are living with the prolonged effects of mental 
illness. Funding was provided to support the social inclusion program that enables 
participants to feel part of their community and to engage with their volunteer  
friend in activities they enjoy but often are beyond their financial capacity.

In Footscray, funding was provided to support the Cohealth and Justice Connect’s 
newly established legal service for older clients living in the Western suburbs of 
Melbourne. The objective of the service is to improve access to legal assistance for 
older clients including those from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds.

Participating in his fifth CEO Sleepout this year, our CEO Craig Dent was joined  
by the State Trustees Executive Team to share in the experience; an experience that 
can only be appreciated by actually sleeping rough, in the cold, on the concrete with 
just a sleeping bag and a sheet of cardboard. Collectively they raised over $40,000 
contributing to the total of $958,350 raised in Victoria and more than $5.5 million 
across Australia secured for fighting homelessness.

State Trustees aims to raise awareness on important issues that impact the  
Victorian community. We do this through a program of educational activities,  
sponsorships and seminars across Victoria each year. 

>  CONNECTED Art Exhibition

>  State Trustees Australia Foundation 

>  Wholehearted Giving

>  CEO Sleepout
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» CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

State Trustees is committed  
to achieving and demonstrating 
the highest standards of 
corporate governance.

>  Organisational Structure  
(as at 30 June 2015)

State Trustees’ core governance practices are consistent with the Victorian 
Government’s ‘Good practice guide on governance for Victorian public sector entities’.

State Trustees is a state government owned company and operates as a corporation, 
registered with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC).

As a state government business enterprise (GBE) and the holder of an Australian 
Financial Services License, the Company is required to comply with several key pieces 
of legislation: 

• State Owned Enterprises Act 1992; 

• State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act 1994; 

• Guardianship and Administration Act 1986; 

• Trustee Companies Act 1984; and

• Corporations Act 2001. 

The Victorian State Treasurer is the sole shareholder of the Company. State  
Trustees reports to the Treasurer of Victoria, through the Victorian Department  
of Treasury and Finance.

The Board has delegated responsibility for operating and administering State  
Trustees to the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Team. The Chief Executive 
Officer and Executive Team authority to act is described in a formal instrument  
of delegated authority.

EXECUTIVE 

>  Board composition

> Chair and Chief Executive Officer

State Trustees is governed by a Board of Directors, appointed by the Victorian 
Treasurer on behalf of the State of Victoria. Details of the Board members,  
their experience, expertise, qualifications and terms of office are set out  
in the Board of Directors section of the Directors’ Report.

The Chair is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring Directors are properly briefed 
in all matters relevant to their role and responsibilities, facilitating Board discussions, 
and managing the Board’s relationship with the organisation’s senior executives.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing corporate strategies  
and policies.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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> The Board’s role

>  Independent professional  
advice and access to  
organisation information

>  Board processes

>  Governance review 

>  Continuing professional development

>  Conflict of interest

The Board’s role is to provide strategic guidance within a framework of  
prudent and effective controls that enables risk to be assessed and managed.

Each Director has the right to access all relevant State Trustees executives, 
information and, subject to prior consultation with the Chair, may seek independent 
professional advice from a suitably qualified adviser at the organisation’s expense.

The full Board held ten meetings in the year, plus strategy and extraordinary meetings 
as needed to address specific significant matters as and when they arose. When formal 
Board meetings were not scheduled, Directors received update reports from the Chief 
Executive Officer.

The Chair, Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary prepare meeting agendas. 
Standing items include the Chief Executive Officer’s report, updates from Board 
Committee meetings, financial reports, strategic matters, governance,  
risk management and compliance. All Directors receive Board papers at least  
five business days before meetings. 

The organisation, the Board and its committees continue to monitor governance 
arrangements on an ongoing basis. 

The Board has a policy on continuing professional development to encourage  
its Directors to further develop their skills and expertise through high-quality  
learning and professional development opportunities.

Directors must keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interests that 
might potentially conflict with those of State Trustees. Directors are guided in this 
area by Board-developed procedures on disclosing potential conflicts of interest. 
Where the Board believes that a significant conflict exists, the Director concerned 
does not receive the relevant Board papers and is not present at the meeting while  
the relevant matter is considered. 

BOARD COMMITTEES

Any recommended changes to committee charters are submitted to the respective 
committees, and any changes that are approved are then submitted to the Board  
for its approval.

The standing committees during the 2014/15 year were: 

• Audit and Compliance Committee

• Investment Committee

• Remuneration Committee

• Digital Transformation Committee

• State Trustees Australia Foundation (STAF) Advisory Committee.

Generally, committee structures and membership are reviewed annually. In the case 
of the STAF Advisory Committee, members who are not State Trustees representatives 
are appointed for three years.

Each committee has its own written charter setting out its roles and responsibilities, 
composition, structure, membership requirements and the manner in which the 
committee operates.

The Board has established  
a number of committees to  
help it perform its duties and 
allow detailed consideration  
of complex issues. The Company 
Secretary and the management 
representative responsible 
for preparing the relevant 
committee’s papers review  
each committee’s charter  
at least annually.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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>  Audit and Compliance Committee

>  Investment Committee

> Remuneration Committee

>  State Trustees Australia Foundation  
(STAF) Advisory Committee

>  Digital Transformation Committee

The Audit and Compliance Committee acts as delegate of the Board to oversee  
the financial reporting and corporate accounting policies and controls monitoring  
of the organisation’s compliance with all relevant legislative and regulatory 
obligations. The Audit and Compliance Committees were combined during  
2014/15 with the first meeting of the joint Committee held on 21 November 2014.

The Committee is responsible for approving the internal audit program conducted 
each year. The internal auditors help the Board ensure compliance with internal 
controls and risk management programs by regularly reviewing how well the 
compliance and control systems function. 

The Auditor-General is the organisation’s official external auditor, but he has 
contracted State Trustees’ external audit to HLB Mann Judd. State Trustees  
outsources the internal audit function to BDO East Coast Partnership.

The Investment Committee acts as delegate of the Board for governance and 
oversight of the policies and frameworks governing client’s investable assets,  
the State Trustees Investment Funds and Corporate investment portfolio.

The key functions of the Committee are to oversee the actions of management  
in relation to the supervision of policies and frameworks governing client’s investable 
assets and determine the investment objectives and strategic asset allocations for  
the State Trustees Investment Funds, corporate investment portfolio and State 
Trustees Australia Foundation (STAF).

The Remuneration Committee makes specific recommendations on remuneration 
packages and other employment terms for the Chief Executive Officer and other  
senior executives. Remuneration of executives is determined with reference to  
the Government Sector Executive Remuneration Panel (GSERP). The Committee  
also makes recommendations to the Board on superannuation arrangements  
and has oversight of succession planning for key roles within State Trustees.

The role of the STAF Advisory Committee, which meets at least once a year,  
is to recommend how the STAF income should be distributed to, or benefit,  
eligible charitable recipients. Grants for this purpose are generated from income 
earned on donations where the donors have not made binding directions for grants  
to specific charities.

The Digital Transformation Committee acts as delegate of the Board in relation  
to governance and implementation of Information Communication Technology  
(ICT) investment. The Committee assesses and monitors business risks as they  
relate to ICT investments and monitors expenditure and business plan targets. 

BOARD COMMITTEES

» CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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>  Confidentiality

>  Conflict of interest

Employees are expected to maintain and respect the confidentiality and privacy  
of clients’ personal and financial information. Employees must not use or disclose  
any confidential information for any unauthorised purpose, including for personal  
use or to benefit a third party. An essential part of employment arrangements  
is adherence to the code of conduct.

When dealing with represented persons’ affairs, employees must adhere to the secrecy 
obligations set out in section 17 of the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act 1994. 
State Trustees is also subject to other privacy obligations that include the Privacy Act 
1988, Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 and Health Records Act 2001.

In accordance with the code of conduct, employees are required to take care  
to avoid actual or apparent conflicts of interest between their private affairs and  
State Trustees business. Conflicts of interest are situations where an employee  
has a personal interest that may influence (or even appear to influence) the way  
they perform their official duties.

The code of conduct is regularly reviewed to reference updated and emerging  
issues and cross reference other policies from which conflict issues can arise.

All new employees receive a copy of the code of conduct during their induction 
training. It is also available on the intranet, and employees are required to confirm 
electronically that they have read and understood it. 

The code of conduct contains specific clauses relating to confidentiality,  
email and information technology, conflict of interest, and personal behaviour.  
It expressly addresses dealing with breaches and non-compliance with the code.

PROTECTED DISCLOSURES ACT 2012

State Trustees does not tolerate officers or employees at any level acting improperly 
at any time, nor does it tolerate the taking of reprisals of any sort against those who 
come forward to disclose improper conduct. 

State Trustees’ Protected Disclosure procedures are available via the State Trustees 
website: www.statetrustees.com.au.

State Trustees is not a body that can receive disclosures of improper conduct under 
the Protected Disclosures Act 2012. State Trustees is, however, a body in respect  
of which disclosures of improper conduct can be made. A person wanting to make  
a disclosure of improper conduct about State Trustees or its officers or employees 
must do so to the Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC).

IBAC Contact Details

Phone: 1300 735 135

Fax: (03) 8635 6444

Mail: IBAC, GPO BOX 24234, MELBOURNE, VIC, 3000

Web: www.ibac.vic.gov.au

State Trustees is committed 
to operating ethically and has 
a code of conduct setting out 
the expectations of how our 
employees should act with  
honesty and integrity at all times.

State Trustees is committed  
to the aims and objectives of the 
Protected Disclosures Act 2012. 

CODE OF CONDUCT
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We strive to accomplish this through the continual development and support  
of a culture that embraces wellbeing, health and safety as a priority. 

State Trustees OH&S policy specifically focuses on managing risks by identifying 
hazards, assessing risk, implementing controls to reduce risk and evaluations  
of effectiveness of these controls. 

The State Trustees OH&S Committee consists of health and safety representatives 
who are members of a designated work group and have been elected and hold office 
in accordance with the provisions of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004. 
The primary responsibility of the committee is to facilitate cooperation between 
management and employees in developing and carrying out measures designed  
to ensure a safe and healthy working environment. 

• Maintaining paper and waste recycling systems;

•  Using laser printers and multi-function printers and photocopiers with  
energy saving features;

• Having computers with auto-off energy saving control software;

• Undertaking a cartridge recycling program for all printer and photocopier toners;

• Providing dual-flush cisterns in bathrooms; and

• Having a motor vehicle fleet comprising of 35% hybrid vehicles.

State Trustees relocated its head office to Footscray on 21 July 2014, into a 5 Star 
Green Star building. Facilitated by the Green Building Council of Australia (GBCA),  
the aim of the Green Star program is developing a sustainable property industry  
for Australia by encouraging the adoption of green building practices.

•  One person is equivalent to 15 square metres, meaning all design elements  
have been designed accordingly;

•  Lights are installed per square metre of office space with light sensors installed 
instead of switches;

•  Alternate sources of energy are used to power the building (generators, solar panels, 
water tanks and wind turbines);

• Sensory air-conditioning is installed which runs off temperature gauges;

• Daylight indicators are used to turn lights off automatically;

• Waterless urinals are in male bathrooms;

• Automatic water taps are in all bathrooms;

• The site re-harvests sprinkler water (which is deployed during weekly fire testing);

• All toilets use recycled water; and

•  Mechanical systems are low velocity (i.e. underfloor heating and cooling  
for habitable zones only).

State Trustees is committed  
to protecting the health,  
safety and welfare of all 
employees, contractors, 
customers and visitors. 

State Trustees is committed  
to minimising the impact of  
our activities on the environment 
and have a number of initiatives 
in place across our offices  
to ensure we are an 
environmentally sustainable 
organisation including:

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (OH&S)

ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES

» CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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>  Represented persons The Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) Guardianship List appoints 
State Trustees as an administrator for the legal and financial affairs of people  
who are deemed unable to make reasonable judgments in respect of their affairs  
due to disability or mental illness.

State Trustees administers the financial and legal affairs of over 10,000 represented 
people, managing their assets with a cumulative value in excess of $1 billion.

Any person may apply to VCAT seeking the appointment of an administrator.  
They may nominate a person such as a family member, friend, accountant, solicitor, 
State Trustees or a private trustee company who they consider could undertake 
the role. The Public Advocate may also apply to VCAT to appoint a guardian or 
administrator or to review appointment arrangements.

In cases where the applicant does not nominate an administrator, or VCAT considers 
the nominee unsuitable - for example, where there is significant family conflict -  
VCAT may appoint State Trustees or another suitable administrator.

Subject to the Guardianship and Administration Act 1986 and the administration order, 
an administrator:

• Is responsible for managing the represented person’s estate;

•  Takes possession and care of, recovers, collects, preserves, and administers  
the property and estate, and generally manages the represented person’s  
financial and legal affairs; and

•  Exercises all rights relating to the estate that the represented person might exercise 
if they had the ability to do so.

In exercising such wide powers, the legislation requires administrators to act in  
the represented person’s best interests. As administrator, State Trustees takes  
into account the represented person’s wishes and tries to encourage and help  
them to become capable of administering their own estate wherever possible.

The agreement provides a reimbursement for some of the costs of administering  
the legal and financial affairs for those clients who would otherwise not have the  
funds to access these services, including Victorians who die intestate. 

The Community Services Agreement applies to those services which are statutorily 
nominated, including tribunal appointed financial administration and deceased 
estate administration as well as some funding for vulnerable Victorians to access 
attorneyship and trust administration services.

State Trustees works hard to provide an efficient operating base. However, many 
represented persons have few assets and therefore are serviced from lower value 
estates which operate at a loss to the organisation despite this efficiency focus.

Some government funding is provided to State Trustees as part of this agreement  
and services are provided under legislation that includes the State Trustees  
(State Owned Company) Act 1994, Administration and Probate Act 1958,  
Trustee Act 1958, and Guardianship and Administration Act 1986.

A Community Services Agreement 
has been in place between State 
Trustees and the State since 1994. 

COMMUNITY SERVICES AGREEMENT
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>  Australian Guardianship and  
Administration Council (AGAC)  
National Standards

State Trustees takes the stewardship of clients’ affairs seriously. Our employees  
are carefully selected to ensure they are empathetic to clients’ needs, ensuring they 
act in our clients’ best interests at all times, empowering clients towards greater 
independence wherever possible.

AGAC provides a national forum for State and Territory agencies that protect adults 
with a decision-making disability through adult guardianship and administration.  
We follow the 12 national standards as provided by AGAC that set out minimum 
service levels to be provided to individuals by a financial manager. The standards 
complement legislative and other policies, principles and practices, codes of 
professional conduct and ethical behaviour, privacy and confidentiality of personal 
information and records, and other requirements which financial managers need  
to meet in each State and Territory. The standards cover:

• Providing the client with information;

• Ensuring client views and involvement are taken into consideration;

• Advocating for the client as necessary;

• Protecting client assets; 

• Protecting and respecting the client’s legal rights;

• Making payments to the client and for the client; 

• Investing client money;

• Making financial decisions with the client; 

• Recording client information;

• Reviews of the client Order;

• Respecting client privacy and confidentiality; and

• Being professional. 

COMMUNITY SERVICES AGREEMENT

» CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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> Compliance and control

> Fraud control

> Business continuity planning

State Trustees is committed to meeting strong compliance and ethical standards. 
A Compliance Policy guides State Trustees in meeting ongoing and continuously 
changing compliance requirements and obligations.

The policy, which overarches an annual Compliance plan, reflects the Company’s 
commitment to compliance. 

The Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board oversees all compliance 
responsibilities and issues. To help more effectively manage financial services 
compliance responsibilities, State Trustees has a management committee titled  
the Australian Financial Services (AFS) Licence Committee. The Committee reviews 
and monitors ongoing compliance with AFS licence obligations.

The Committee’s key responsibilities include:

• Reviewing key risks to compliance;

•  Resolving AFS licence issues;

•  Assessing materiality of compliance breaches and recommending remedial action; and 

•  Ensuring that all employees are trained to understand their compliance 
responsibilities and the processes and policies for reporting and rectifying breaches.

State Trustees has a number of management systems, process controls,  
training and procedures directed at preventing or minimising the risk of fraud.

The Risk Committee of Management oversees and reviews any investigation,  
then reports its findings and recommendations to the Chief Executive Officer  
and the Board. All instances of fraud must be reported to the State Trustees Audit  
and Compliance Committee.

State Trustees has a Business Continuity Policy which defines its approach  
to the management of business disruption and provides the minimum standard  
to ensure the effective management of such risk in order to support the achievement 
of the organisations business objectives. 

Business Continuity Plans are designed to ensure that critical processes continue  
if a serious unplanned event occurs that may disrupt the business.

COMPLIANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

>  Risk management The Board oversees State Trustees’ risk management processes.

The risk management framework is structured and transparent. Built on the Risk 
Management Standard AS/NZS 31000:2009, it allows State Trustees to identify,  
assess and manage risk across the Company systematically and consistently.  
The framework also defines reporting processes to manage exposures at an 
appropriate level across the organisation.

The Risk Committee of Management comprises of key senior managers, who are 
responsible for supporting the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relating 
to identifying, assessing, and managing risk and adhering to internal risk management 
policies and procedures. 

Working with the Executive and senior management, the risk management team helps 
management mitigate risks through the identification of business risks and controls. 
The team also monitors and regularly reports to both the Board and management  
on the status of risk across the organisation.
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» FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

State Trustees Limited is a state government owned enterprise. Its registered office 
and principal place of business:

to 21 July 2014  
168 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne, Victoria, 3000

from 21 July 2014 
1 McNab Avenue 
Footscray, Victoria 3011

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity’s operations and its principal 
activities is included in the Directors’ Report on pages 19-24, which is not part of this 
financial statement.

The financial statement was authorised for issue by the Directors on 25 August 2015.
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This financial statement covers 
both State Trustees Limited as 
an individual entity and the 
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» CONTENTS
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» A. DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Directors of State Trustees Limited in office during the financial year were:

Appointed: 14 December 2011, Appointed Chair 5 June 2014

Retired: 30 June 2015

Experience: Dino brought a broad range of experience from the legal,  
government and ITC sectors. Dino has held senior corporate roles in commercial, 
regulatory, marketing and sales and is currently a senior executive in Telstra’s  
Global Enterprise and Services business.

A former corporate lawyer specialising in banking, finance and commercial,  
Dino has also served in Senior Adviser positions for Federal Ministers of Finance,  
with responsibility for oversight of Commonwealth Government Business Enterprises 
and the Minister for Defence on acquisitions and procurement, major projects  
and industry.

Dino holds degrees in Law (Hons) and Commerce from the University of Melbourne.

Appointed: 27 August 2013

Experience: Chris is one of Australia’s leading turnaround and corporate renewal 
advisors. He is a qualified solicitor and chartered accountant with a broad range  
of advisory and operational experience.

He previously worked as a management consultant and an investment banker  
and has a long history in assessing and improving corporate performance.

Prior to returning to a leading professional services firm, Chris was the Managing 
Director of an ASX-listed company which focused on the needs of the ageing 
population. In this role he developed and implemented a new corporate strategy 
designed to deliver sustainable and profitable growth. While the initial focus was  
on improving the operational and financial performance of existing business units  
this initiative was supplemented by a range of acquisitions.

Having considerable experience as both advisor and front line manager, Chris brings 
operational empathy and understands the importance of working with management 
to design practical solutions that are capable of being assessed against clearly defined 
and measurable outcomes. 

Appointed: 3 December 2013

Experience: Pam is a Chartered Accountant with extensive experience in the  
start-up, financial planning and prudent financial management of superannuation 
funds and a range of small and medium-size enterprises in the corporate,  
government and not-for-profit sectors.

Pam has held many Board roles and has been Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary of a number of investment and property businesses including Industry 
Superannuation Property Trust, Becton Investment Management Limited  
and Australian Farms Fund Management Pty Ltd.

Pam is currently a Director of ESS Super and is a member of the Audit Committee  
for Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources.

>  Dino Georgiou,  
LLB (Hons) BCom

>  Christopher (Chris) Martin,  
LLB (Hons), B Ec (Acc)

>  Pamela (Pam) Mitchell,  
B.Bus, Dip Fin Services, CA

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

State Trustees Limited’s Board of Directors is pleased to present the economic entity’s  
financial statements as at 30 June 2015. 
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Appointed: 3 December 2013, Appointed Interim Chair 1 July 2015

Experience: An experienced and inspirational Global Non-Executive Director  
and business leader, Sue is known for her ability to lead companies in the achievement 
of breakout improvements in growth and productivity – particularly through the 
application of digital technology and social media in transforming markets. A highly 
numerate and commercially astute Director, Sue is recognised for her expertise in 
digital business, business transformation, cyber security, governance and strategic 
thinking.

Sue has been a Non-Executive Director/Chairman for nine years. Currently she  
is Deputy Chairman of Goulburn Valley Water; Director and immediate past  
Chair of YMCA Victoria; Director TAC; Managing Director Balcombe Consulting  
and Facilitator AICD Company Directors Course.

Sue brings to the board table 20 plus years of senior executive P&L and board 
consulting experience. Companies include Telstra Corporation (13 years), Origin 
Energy, SMS Management & Technology and Bendigo & Adelaide Bank as well as major 
Government organisations such as Medibank Private and Department of Defence.

Appointed: 9 October 2014

Experience: Kathryn has been a Non-Executive Director/Chair for eight years. 
Currently in addition to her role with State Trustees, she is President (Chair)  
of Ruyton Girls’ School, a Director of the Skin and Cancer Foundation, and External 
Compliance Committee member for Franklin Templeton Investments Australia 
Limited. Previously she held directorships with Vanguard Investments Australia Ltd 
where she was also a Trustee for superannuation products, and Regnan Governance 
Research and Engagement. An experienced financial services lawyer, Kathryn has 
extensive experience in the funds management industry at Executive level. She is  
a Williamson Fellow (WCLP 2005) and remains involved in the not for profit sector.

Appointed: 1 May 2008

Retired: 30 April 2015

Appointed: 1 March 2012

Retired: 31 May 2015

>  Sue O’Connor,  
B App Sci, Grad Dip Bus Mgt, FAICD

>  Kathryn Watt,  
BA, LLB, Masters in Corporations  
and Securities Law, GCTM, MAICD

>  Patrick Burroughs,  
BSSc (Hons), FCA, FAICD, SA Fin

>  Lindsay Smith,  
MBA, MAICD

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

» A. DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Appointed: 2 December 2013 

Experience: An award-winning Senior Executive who builds and leads high performing 
teams to deliver transformational change in large volume, complex and highly 
regulated environments. Recognised for his leadership across community,  
corporate and government organisations, Craig has successfully implemented 
sustainable operating models that are both customer-centric and profitable. 

In December 2013, Craig was appointed to the role of Chief Executive Officer  
at State Trustees; the organisation has undertaken significant transformation  
under his leadership with a focus on people, systems and process efficiencies,  
with the client being at the centre of all decision-making. 

Craig is a Non-Executive Director of Variety – the Children’s Charity, Member of the 
Financial Services Council Trustee Board and of the Institute of Public Administration 
Australia Victoria’s Bendigo Advisory Committee, Treasurer of the Australian 
Guardianship and Administrative Council as well as an official Ambassador  
to Australia’s multicultural broadcaster, SBS. 

An alumnus of the esteemed Leadership Victoria, Williamson Community Leadership 
Program, Craig has also received an International Exemplary Leader Award from the 
Chair Academy for Advances in Academic and Administrative Leadership, and has 
been recognised by the Australian Institute of Management for his contribution  
to the Australian business community, receiving the highest endorsement that  
can be awarded; Fellow status. 

In 2015 Craig was honoured by Swinburne University having been conferred  
with the title of Adjunct Industry Fellow within the Faculty of Business and Law.  
A long-time advocate for higher education, Craig also lectures at universities and 
speaks by invitation on leadership, strategy and management. Craig holds a Master  
of Business Administration from Swinburne University and is a member of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors and the Harvard Business Review  
Advisory Council.

Appointed: 31 December 2013 

Experience: Paul has worked in finance and banking industries for more than  
25 years including a range of senior leadership positions.

As Chief Financial Officer for State Trustees Paul is responsible for financial 
management, investments, project management office, strategic execution,  
client concerns and procurement.

Prior to State Trustees, Paul was Chief Financial Officer at BankVic, driving a  
number of major transformation projects including obtaining a banking license, 
process reengineering for superannuation services and implementing a detailed 
management reporting system.

Paul has also held lead roles at JPMorgan, Members Equity Bank, Primary 
Superannuation, Westpac and PwC. He has travelled extensively and worked  
in Budapest, Bucharest, London, Wellington, Sydney and Melbourne.

As well as senior corporate roles, Paul previously spent four years as Director/
Treasurer of Experimenta, a not-for-profit arts organisation based in Melbourne,  
and currently sits on the board of Variety the Children’s Charity.

>  Craig Dent MBA,  
FAIM, MAICD – Chief Executive Officer

>  Paul Manning BSc (Hons),  
ACA – Chief Financial Officer

OTHER OFFICERS
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A Number of meetings attended. 

H Number of meetings held during the time the director held office exclusive of leave of absence.

(a) Dino Georgiou was Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. 

(b) Patrick Burroughs was the Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee until 1 May 2015.

(c) Christopher Martin became Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee on 2 May 2015.

(d) Pam Mitchell was Chairman of the Investment Committee.

(e) Lindsay Smith was Chairman of the STAF Advisory Committee, until 31 May 2015.

(f) Sue O’Connor was Chairman of the Digital Transformation Committee.

(g) Director is not a member of this Committee.

^ STAF stands for State Trustees Australia Foundation

* In addition all Directors attended other meetings with Management in the discharge of their duties.

** The Audit and Compliance Committees were combined, the first meeting of the joint Committee 
occurred on 21 November 2014.

2. DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

Director Board Meeting Audit & 
Compliance 

Committee ** 

Investment 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

STAF^ Advisory 
Committee

Digital 
Transformation 

Committee

A H A H A H A H A H A H

Dino Georgiou (a) 10 10 5 5 4 4 3 3 (g) (g) 3 3

Patrick Burroughs (b) 8 8 4 4 (g) (g) 2 2 (g) (g) 4 5

Christopher Martin (c) 10 10 5 5 (g) (g) (g) (g) (g) (g) 6 6

Pam Mitchell (d) 8 10 (g) (g) 3 4 2 3 (g) (g) (g) (g)

Lindsay Smith (e) 9 9 4 4 (g) (g) 3 3 2 2 (g) (g)

Sue O’Connor (f) 10 10 (g) (g) 4 4 (g) (g) (g) (g) 6 6

Kathryn Watt 9 9 2 2 2 2 (g) (g) (g) (g) (g) (g)

Appointed: 28 October 2013

Experience: Agata is a senior leader with over 20 years of experience in the legal, 
financial, telecommunications, gas and mining industries.

She has led the transformation of teams, systems and processes to deliver significantly 
improved profitability and efficiency. Agata’s innovative approach to problem solving 
produces pragmatic and effective solutions. Agata’s people focused leadership has 
transformed operating models and seen the delivery of outstanding customer service 
- she balances stakeholder requirements with business objectives to ensure successful 
organisational outcomes.

Agata was a Partner at international law firm, King & Wood Mallesons before  
joining State Trustees. As a Senior Executive at State Trustees, Agata is responsible  
for all legal services (both corporate services and services to clients). This includes  
will and power of attorney preparation (consultative, kits sold at retail outlets  
and on-line). Agata is also Company Secretary and leads the Compliance team  
and corporate governance at State Trustees. Whilst at King & Wood Mallesons,  
Agata acted for clients across a number of industries including, manufacturing, 
banking, engineering and electricity. Her clients included Telstra, Asciano, Orica,  
Energy Australia, Origin, International Power, Caterpillar, KPMG, Australia Post, 
National Australia Bank and CSIRO to name a few. Agata is a non-executive  
director of ERMHA and a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

>  Agata Jarbin BEc (Hons),  
LLB – Company Secretary

» A. DIRECTORS’ REPORT

OTHER OFFICERS
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State Trustees Limited’s principal activities during the year were acting as trustee, 
executor, administrator, attorney and provider of other fiduciary and agency services.

In keeping with a declared policy of distributing 50% of operating profit after tax 
to the shareholder, the Directors recommend a total dividend of $1.759m for the 
2014/15 financial year (2014: $1.837m).

*  The final 2015 dividend is not payable until approved by the shareholder. 
Accordingly, State Trustees Limited has not made a provision for the dividend  
in the current accounts.

3. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

4. DIVIDEND

2015 2014

$000 $000

Interim dividend 785 1,025

Final dividend * 974 812

Total dividends for the year 1,759 1,837

In 2014/15 we forged ahead with our digital transformation program establishing 
the Digital Transformation Committee to provide stronger governance over digital 
investment. As a result we automated and outsourced client payment processing, 
introduced a corporate procurement system, upgraded our website and integrated  
our sales and service systems. Furthermore, we automated and outsourced client  
and corporate mail processing allowing for greater cost-effectiveness and efficiency  
in the handling of incoming and outgoing correspondence. 

We also developed and sold online the enduring power of attorney kit legally valid  
for Victoria to complement our online will kit. In 2015/16 customers from across 
Australia will be able to purchase online a State Trustees legally valid enduring  
power of attorney kit relevant to the state they live in. 

Our product strategy is to maximise distribution by diversifying our existing products 
using alternative distribution channels. In 2014/15 we developed and trialled sales 
of retail will and enduring power of attorney kits through Australia Post stores across 
Victoria and select stores in New South Wales. This has proven to be highly successful 
and we are looking to continue our relationship with Australia Post moving forward. 

We also developed an Executor Assist service where executors receive advice and 
guidance on administering a deceased estate while retaining their role as executor. 
The pilot of Executor Assist which was launched from 1 July 2015, will provide valuable  
market insight into the viability of providing this service ongoing.

Each year we survey represented persons referred to us through a Victorian Civil 
and Administrative Tribunal Order and those passed to us as executor of last resort. 
In 2014/15 represented persons feedback was that overall satisfaction with State 
Trustees rated 76.8% compared to our target of 75%. 

The profit before tax was $5.472m (2014: $4.709m). This result is $3.286m (150%) 
ahead of budget. The profit after tax was $3.519m (2014: $3.673m) and is ahead 
of the budgeted profit of $1.530m. The strong profit result reflects a year where 
continued investment in developing our people and improving processes has  
been offset by achievement against our revenue targets.

5. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The current reporting period 
has seen State Trustees Limited 
continue on the strategic journey 
of evolution, transformation  
and change. 
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There were no significant changes in the state of affairs other than those referred  
to in the financial statements or attached notes. 

There are no circumstances which have arisen since 30 June 2015 not otherwise  
dealt with in this report that have significantly affected or may significantly affect  
the operations of State Trustees Limited, the results of those operations or the state  
of affairs of State Trustees Limited in subsequent financial years.

The Directors advise that there are no likely developments in State Trustees Limited’s 
operations or expected results in future financial years to report other than what is 
reported in this report. 

6. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

7. MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

8. LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE RESULTS

» A. DIRECTORS’ REPORT

During the financial year, State Trustees Limited paid a premium under a contract 
insuring specified officers against liability incurred in their capacity of working  
on the company’s behalf. Those officers consist of the Directors of State Trustees 
Limited named earlier in this report, the Company Secretary, and other Officers  
of State Trustees Limited including certain Officers whose functions include  
exercising executive decision making powers of State Trustees Limited and  
its related bodies corporate.

Disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of premium is prohibited  
by the confidentiality clause of the contract of insurance. State Trustees Limited  
has not provided any insurance for an auditor of State Trustees Limited or related  
body corporate. 

State Trustees Limited has complied with the provisions of the Trustee Companies Act 
1984 that requires a reserve fund to be created and set aside by authorised trustee 
companies. This is reflected in the financial statements at Note 13.

A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration, as required under section 307C  
of the Corporations Act 2001, is set out on page 25.

The amounts contained within this report and the financial report have been rounded 
to the nearest $1,000 (where rounding is applicable) under the option available  
to State Trustees Limited under ASIC CO 98/0100. State Trustees Limited is an entity 
to which the Class Order applies.

This report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Sue O’Connor 
Chairman

Chris Martin 
Director

9. INSURANCE

10. RESERVE FUND

11. AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

12. ROUNDING AMOUNTS

Melbourne, 25 August 2015
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» B. AUDITOR-GENERAL’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

To the Directors, State Trustees Limited

The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975.  
The Auditor General, an independent officer of parliament, is not subject to  
direction by any person about the way in which his powers and responsibilities  
are to be exercised.

Under the Audit Act 1994, the Auditor-General is the auditor of each public body  
and for the purposes of conducting an audit has access to all documents and  
property, and may report to parliament any matters which the Auditor-General 
considers appropriate.

Independence Declaration

As auditor for State Trustees Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015, I declare that,  
to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

(a)  no contraventions of auditor independence requirements of the Corporations  
Act 2001 in relation to the audit

(b)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation  
to the audit.

MELBOURNE

28 August 2015

Mr. John Doyle

Auditor-General

In the context of the Victorian Government Risk Management Framework and State 
Trustees’ observance of the framework, I, Sue O’Connor, certify that State Trustees 
Limited has risk management processes in place consistent with the Australian/ 
New Zealand Risk Management Standard (or equivalent designated standard)  
and an internal control system is in place that is intended to enable the Executive  
to understand, manage and satisfactorily control material risk exposures.

The Board verifies this assurance and that the risk profile of State Trustees Limited  
has been critically reviewed within the last 12 months.

Sue O’Connor  
Chairman

» C.  VICTORIAN GOVERNMENT RISK MANAGEMENT 
FRAMEWORK ATTESTATION



26 | State Trustees Annual Report 2015

» D.  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

ASSETS Notes

Current assets 

Cash and deposits 5  11,330 19,537

Receivables 6  10,388 7,784

Investments in managed investments 23  10,100 7,052

Advances to clients 23  2,275 2,275

Prepayments  1,739 1,370

Total current assets 35,832 38,018

Non-current assets

Property, plant, and equipment 8 26,140 28,295

Intangible Assets 9 4,306 -

Deferred tax assets 4 3,798 4,194

Total non-current assets 34,244 32,489

Total assets 70,076 70,507

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 10 7,848 9,574

Income tax equivalent  770 1,300

Provisions 11 - 79

Employee entitlements 11 6,437 6,031

Total current liabilities 15,055 16,984

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 4  52 137

Provisions 11  - 20

Employee entitlements 11 765 1,084

Total non-current liabilities 817 1,241

Total liabilities 15,872 18,225

Net assets 54,204 52,282

EQUITY

Contributed equity 12 17,361 17,361

Reserves 13  16,733 17,212

Retained profits   20,110 17,709

Total equity  54,204 52,282

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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» E.  STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Revenue from continuing operations Notes

Commissions and fees 47,801 45,378

Community services obligation revenue 16,266 15,751

Other operating revenue 3 810 1,294

Total revenue 64,877 62,423

Expenses from continuing operations

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 4,762 2,911

Lease rental charges – operating leases 5,022 2,591

Audit expenses 22 162 154

Employee benefits expense 37,864 39,307

Other expenses 3 11,595 12,751

Total expenses 59,405 57,714

Profit from continuing operations before income tax equivalent 5,472 4,709

Income tax equivalent expense 4 1,953 1,036

Net profit 3,519 3,673

Other comprehensive income items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to Profit or Loss:

Fair value revaluation of land and buildings - -

Income tax equivalent (expense) - -

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the period 3,519 3,673
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» F.  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Consolidated Entity 2015 Contributed 
Equity

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

General  
Reserve 
Note 13

Total

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Total equity at the start  
of the financial year

17,361 - 17,709 17,212 52,282

Profit for the period - - 3,519 - 3,519

Other comprehensive income - - - - -

Total comprehensive income  
for the period

- - 3,519 - 3,519

Transactions with owners  
in their capacity as owners

 -  -  -  - -

Contribution from owners  -  -  -  - -

Elimination of asset revaluation 
Reserve due to sale of land  
and buildings

 -  -  -  -  -

Dividends paid to owners  -  - (1,597)  - (1,597)

Profits transferred to / from 
general reserve

 -  - 479 (479) - 

As at 30 June 2015 17,361 - 20,110 16,733 54,204

Consolidated Entity 2014 Contributed 
Equity

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

General  
Reserve 
Note 13

Total

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Total equity at the start  
of the financial year

17,361 12,941 10,460 9,418 50,180

Profit for the period - - 3,673 - 3,673

Other comprehensive income - - - - -

Total comprehensive income  
for the period

- - 3,673 - 3,673

Transactions with owners  
in their capacity as owners

Contribution from owners - - - - -

Elimination of asset revaluation 
Reserve due to sale of land  
and buildings

- (12,941) 12,941 - -

Dividends paid to owners - - (1,571) - (1,571)

Profits transferred to / from 
general reserve

- - (7,794) 7,794 -

As at 30 June 2014 17,361 - 17,709 17,212 52,282

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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» G.  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

Notes $000s $000s

Cash flows from operating activities

Commissions and fees received 45,706 47,593

Community services obligation income received 15,585 15,572

Corporate investment income 510 1,039

Payments to suppliers and employees (56,476) (55,100)

Payments of income tax equivalent (2,173) (874)

Net cash flows from operating activities 16 3,152 8,230

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment 491 17,014

Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (7,478) (18,084)

Proceeds from redemption of interests in managed investment schemes 1,041 2,849

Payments for interests in managed investment schemes (3,816) (1,050)

Net cash flows from investing activities (9,762) 729

Cash flows from financing activities

Contribution from owners - -

Dividends paid (1,597) (1,571)

Net cash flows from financing activities (1,597) (1,571)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held (8,207) 7,388

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 19,537 12,149

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 11,330 19,537
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The financial report of State Trustees Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015  
was authorised for issuance in accordance with a resolution of the Directors  
on 25 August 2015.

State Trustees Limited is a state government owned company, which has been 
classified as a for profit entity. The State of Victoria is the sole shareholder.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of State Trustees Limited  
are described in the Directors’ report. 

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial 
reports for State Trustees Limited for the period ended 30 June 2015. The purpose 
of this report is to provide users with information about State Trustees Limited 
stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting 
Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board. The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost  
basis, except for land and buildings and financial assets and liabilities held at fair  
value through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair value. 

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial 
statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in 
the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded  
to the nearest thousand ($000) dollars unless otherwise stated. 

The financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards  
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

These are the consolidated financial statements for State Trustees Limited and its 
controlled entity collectively referred to as the “Group”. The Statement of Financial 
Position of the Parent is disclosed in Note 18.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and 
transactions, income and expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-group 
transactions have been eliminated in full.

Each subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which control is obtained  
by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred out of the Group.

NOTE 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

> (a) Statement of compliance

> (b)  Basis of accounting preparation  
and measurement

> (c)  Compliance with International  
Finance Reporting Standards

> (d) Principles of consolidation
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State Trustees Limited conducts an annual internal review of asset values,  
which is used as a source of information to assess for any indicators of impairment. 
External factors, such as changes in expected future processes, technology and 
economic conditions, are also monitored to assess for indicators of impairment.  
If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount 
is calculated. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset’s fair value, less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other 
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received  
or receivable to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition 
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised: 

Commissions and fees

Commissions and fees are charged and earned pursuant to the published schedule  
of fees. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis when the service is provided.

Community Service Agreement (CSA) revenue

Revenue is received from the State of Victoria under the CSA. This revenue is based  
on State Trustees Limited providing financial services management to the community 
as defined by the agreement, and is recognised on an accruals basis when the service 
is provided.

Grant income 

Under the requirements of AASB 120: Accounting for Government Grants and 
Disclosure of Government Assistance, funding is treated as income in the same  
period as the relevant expenses recorded in the income statement.

Deceased estate capital commission revenue accrual

Commission is accrued over the estate service period. Revenue is recognised  
on a proportionate basis, during the estate service period based on work performed  
in line with the defined milestones that result in the settlement of the estate.  
Our benchmarks for this are 31 weeks for a low value estate to 39 weeks for a 
standard/complex estate. The time taken to administer an estate can vary due  
to legal or other circumstances. The fees and charges vary due to the estimates  
used for estate values and commission rates through the estate service period. 

Property Sales Commission Revenue Accrual

Commission is accrued on client properties sold but not settled at reporting date. 
Revenue is recognised on a proportionate basis of work performed to date.

Interest revenue

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method.  
This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating 
the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate. This rate 
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends and trust distributions

Dividends and trust distributions are recognised when the right to receive  
the payment is established.

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

> (e) Revenue recognition

> ( f) Impairment of assets
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Cash and deposits recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash 
at bank, deposits at call and those highly liquid investments (with an original maturity 
of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash 
commitments rather than for investment purposes, and readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include 
bank overdrafts, which are included as borrowings on the balance sheet.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance  
for impairment. 

Collectability of receivables are reviewed on an ongoing basis at an operating 
unit level. Individual debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when 
identified. An impairment provision is recognised when there is objective evidence 
that the Group may not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties  
of the debtor, default payments or debts more than 60 days overdue are considered 
objective evidence of impairment.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted where the effect  
of discounting is immaterial. 

Advances to clients are subject to an approval process prior to issue and are 
periodically reviewed for impairment by divisional management. 

Recognition and derecognition

Investments in financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. All purchases and 
sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Group 
commits to purchase the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the right  
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or been transferred.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on 
financial assets are recognised in profit or loss and the related assets are classified 
as current assets in the Statement of Financial Position. These financial assets are 
designated on the basis that they are a group of financial assets which are managed 
and have their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the  
risk management and investment strategies of the Group as disclosed in Note 23.  
The Group’s financial assets consist of investments in unlisted trusts which are valued 
at the redemption value per unit as reported by the manager of the investments.

Receivables

Receivables are recorded at amortised cost, using the effective interest method  
less impairment. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities 
greater than 12 months after balance date, which are classified as non-current.

Controlled unlisted companies

Investments in controlled unlisted companies are measured at cost and impairment  
is tested annually.

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

> (g) Cash and deposits

> (h) Receivables

> (i)  Investments and other  
financial assets

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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Land and building revaluations 

Any revaluation increment is credited to the asset revaluation reserve included  
in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrement for the same 
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increment is recognised 
in profit or loss.

Any revaluation decrement is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent  
that it offsets a previous revaluation increment for the same asset, in which case  
the decrement is debited directly to the asset revaluation reserve to the extent  
of the credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve for that asset.

Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against  
the gross carrying amounts of the assets and the net amounts are restated to  
the revalued amounts of the assets.

Disposal

An item of property, plant, and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when  
we can expect no further future economic benefits from its use or disposal.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the  
carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Upon disposal or derecognition, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular  
asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation  
and any accumulated impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing  
parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the parts is 
incurred. Similarly, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised  
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement only if it is 
eligible for capitalisation. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit  
or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life  
of the specific assets as follows:

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed,  
and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

> (j) Property 

> (k) Property, plant, and equipment

Leasehold improvements Lease term

Furniture and fittings 10-20 years

Computers 4 years

AV Equipment 10 years

Office equipment 5-7 years

Telephone system 5 years

System development (non Stratis)

- Hardware

- Software

4 years

7 years

System development (Stratis) 3 years

Motor vehicles 5 years
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Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and due to their short term 
nature they are not discounted. They represent liabilities for goods and services 
provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise 
when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase 
of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 
30 days of recognition.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets  
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition 
are capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow  
to the entity.

When the recognition criteria in AASB 138 Intangible Assets are met, internally 
generated intangible assets are recognised and measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation/amortisation and impairment.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date using a 
discounted cash flow methodology. The risks specific to the provision are factored into 
the cash flows and as such a risk-free government bond rate relative to the expected 
life of the provision is used as a discount rate.

Wages, salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave 
expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised 
in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date. They are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee 
benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made 
in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration 
is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, 
and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields 
at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and 
currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current 
liability, even where the entity does not expect to settle the liability within 12  
months because it will not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement  
of the entitlement should the employee leave within 12 months. 

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. There is an unconditional  
right to defer the settlement of the entitlement until the employee has completed  
the requisite years of service.

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

> (m) Payables

> (l) Intangible assets

> (n)  Employee benefits  
and provisions

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015



Your interests at heart | 35 

An onerous contract is considered to exist when the unavoidable cost of meeting 
the contractual obligations exceeds the estimated economic benefits to be received. 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised as a provision  
to the extent that the present obligation exceeds the estimated economic benefits  
to be received. The onerous contract provided for at 30 June 2014 was expensed 
during the year with no provision remaining as of 30 June 2015.

> (o) Onerous contracts

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except where the GST 
incurred is not recoverable. In this case, it is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or part of the expense item as applicable. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST 
component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is 
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as part of  
operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable 
from, or payable to the taxation authority.

Income tax equivalent

State Trustees Limited is a state government owned company listed on the register  
of the National Tax Equivalent Regime. As such, it is required to account for its taxation 
liabilities in accordance with the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936, and the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997 as required. 

It pays tax as calculated in accordance with the respective taxation legislation  
to the Victorian Government Consolidated Fund.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities

The calculation of deferred tax assets/liabilities are measured in accordance with 
Accounting Standard AASB 112. As such, State Trustees Limited accounts for the tax 
consequences of transactions and other events in the same way that it accounts for 
the transactions and other events themselves. Thus, for transactions recognised in 
profit or loss, related tax effects are also recognised in profit or loss. For transactions 
and other events recognised directly in equity, any related tax effects are also 
recognised in equity.

A deferred tax asset or a deferred tax liability will be recognised for all temporary 
differences that arise for the difference between the carrying value of the asset  
or liability and its tax value. 

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

> (p)  Accounting for the goods  
and services tax (GST)

> (q) Income tax

Annual leave (expected to be settled greater than 12 months)

The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled greater than 12 months 
of the reporting date is recognised as a current liability and measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, based upon  
current company annual leave policy and directions imposed by management in  
terms of leave utilisation. Expected future payments are discounted using market 
yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity  
and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the future cash outflows.
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NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Ordinary shares of State Trustees Limited are classified as equity, government 
contribution received/receivable for which the Department of Treasury and Finance 
made a specific designation as contribution from owners and are treated as capital 
contribution, without the issuing of shares.

State Trustees Limited as lessee

Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as  
an expense in the comprehensive operating statement on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term, except where another systemic basis is more representative of the 
time pattern of the benefits derived from the leased asset. The leased asset is not 
recognised in the balance sheet.

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments 
arising from contracts. These commitments are disclosed by way of a note  
(refer to Note 14 Commitments) at their nominal value and exclusive of GST payable.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, 
but are disclosed by way of a note (refer to Note 15, Contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities) and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets  
and liabilities are presented exclusive of GST payable.

> (r) Contributed equity

> (s) Operating leases

> (t) Commitments

> (u)  Contingent assets and  
contingent liabilities

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods  
in respect of deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax losses 
and the carry forward of unused tax credits. A deferred tax asset shall be recognised 
for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that  
it is probable that future profit will be available against which the unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are amounts of income taxes payable in future periods  
in respect of taxable temporary differences. 

Tax Consolidation

State Trustees Limited has formed an income tax consolidated group consisting  
of State Trustees Limited and STL Financial Services Limited. State Trustees Limited  
is the head entity of the tax consolidated group.

The entities within the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding 
arrangement and a tax-sharing agreement with the head entity. Under the terms  
of the tax funding arrangement, STL Financial Services Limited has agreed to pay/
receive a tax equivalent payment to or from State Trustees Limited based on the 
current tax asset or liability of the entity. Such amounts are reflected in amounts 
receivable from or payable to the other entity in the tax consolidated group.

The tax sharing agreement entered into between the members of the tax consolidated 
group provides for the determination of the allocation of income tax liabilities 
between the entities should State Trustees Limited default on its tax payment 
obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financial statements in respect 
of this agreement as payment of any amounts under the tax sharing agreement  
is considered remote. 

> (q) Income tax (cont.)

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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The following accounting standards and interpretations have been reviewed  
and adapted in the financial statements prepared by State Trustees Limited  
when applicable.

Management are still reviewing the new accounting standards and interpretations 
below; however, at this stage we do not believe that they will have a material impact 
upon the financial statements prepared by the Company.

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

> (v)  New accounting standards  
and interpretations

> (w)  New accounting standards  
and interpretations  
- not yet effective

Accounting Standard / Interpretation Note

AASB 2013 - 5 Amendments to Accounting Standards - Investment Entities N/A - no investment entities that  
have investments in subsidiaries

AASB 2012 - 3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –  
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132] 

Adoption if relevant to end of financial 
year accounts

AASB 2013 - 3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures 
for Non-Financial Assets

Additional disclosures will be provided  
as relevant to the end of financial  
year accounts

AASB 2013 - 9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual 
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments [PART B Materiality only]

Adoption if relevant to end of financial 
year accounts

AASB 2013 - 1 Amendment to AASB 1049 - Relocation of Budgetary  
Reporting Requirements

Adoption if relevant to end of financial 
year accounts

AASB 2013 - 4 Amendments to Accounting Standards - Novation of Derivatives  
and continuation of Hedge Accounting

N/A – State Trustees Limited does  
not complete hedge accounting

AASB 2013 - 6 Amendments to AASB 136 arising from disclosure requirements Adoption if relevant to end of financial 
year accounts

AASB 2013 - 7 Amendments to AASB 1038 arising from AASB 10 - consolidation  
and interests of policy holders

N/A - State Trustees Limited does not  
have any policy holders

AASB 2014 - 1 Amendment to Accounting Standards, Part A Annual Improvements, 
Part B Defined Benefit Plans/Employee Contributions, Part C Materiality

Adoption if relevant to end of financial 
year accounts

AASB 2014 - 2 Amendments to AASB 1053 - Transition to and between  
Tiers and related Tier Disclosure Requirements

Adoption if relevant to end of financial 
year accounts

Accounting Standard / Interpretation Effective Date

AASB 2010 - 7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) 1 January 2015

AASB 2014 - 8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) - 
Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 (December 2010)

1 January 2015

AASB 2014 - 9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016

AASB 2013 - 9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Part C Financial Instruments 1 January 2016

AASB 2014 - 10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Sale or Contribution of Assets between  
an Investor and it's Associate or Joint Venture

1 January 2016

AASB 2015 - 1 Amendment to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements to Australian 
Accounting Standards 2012-2014 Cycle

1 January 2016

AASB 2014 - 4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarification of Acceptable Methods  
of Depreciation and Amortisation 

1 January 2016

AASB 2014 - 5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Arising from AASB 15 1 January 2017

AASB 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017

AASB 9 - Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

AASB 2014 - 1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Part E Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

AASB 2014 - 7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) 1 January 2018
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NOTE 3. OTHER REVENUE AND EXPENSES

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

INCOME

Other revenue from operating activities

- Interest received 366 737

- Distributions from managed investments 496 261

- Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value (52) 296

810 1,294

EXPENSES

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation

- Leasehold improvements 1,036 483

- Fixtures and fittings 283 185

- Computer and office equipment 2,100 1,508

- Motor vehicles 59 96

3,478 2,272

Amortisation

- System development 723 639

- Intangibles 561 -

1,284 639

Total 4,762 2,911

Other expenses

- Corporate 3,804 4,724

- Building and office 3,884 3,304

- Marketing and advertising 1,593 1,224

- Information system 1,659 2,506

- Travel and motor vehicle 476 429

- Loss on sale of fixed assets - 189

- Other 179 375

11,595 12,751

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 4. INCOME TAX EQUIVALENT EXPENSE

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Profit/(loss) before tax 5,472 4,709

Prima facie tax at 30% 1,643 1,413

Tax effect of non-temporary differences:

- Imputation credits and other (66) (22)

- Entertainment 11 11

- Adjustment related to Exhibition Street - (364)

- Adjustment to deferred tax assets/liabilities 312 -

- Adjustment on prior year 53 (2)

Total income tax expense attributable to operating profit 1,953 1,036

Total income tax expense comprises movements in:

- Current tax expense 1,567 1,707

- Deferred tax expense 312 (536)

- Other adjustments 74 (135)

1,953 1,036

Consolidated Entity 2015 Opening 
Balance

Charged to 
Income

Charged to 
Equity

Closing Balance

$000s $000s $000s $000s

Gross deferred tax assets

- Provision for doubtful debts 27 (8) - 19 

- Provision for employee entitlements 2,518 (175) - 2,343 

- Provision for accrued expenses 1,193 (435) - 759 

- Accrued audit fees 155 (74) - 81 

- Accrued lease expenses 301 295 - 596 

4,194 (396) - 3,798 

Gross deferred tax liabilities  

- Unrealised gains on investments (102) 80 - (22)

- FBT (14) 12 - (2)

- Fixed assets (general) (21) (7) - (28)

- Asset revaluation reserve - - - - 

(137) 85 - (52)

Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the following:
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NOTE 5. CASH AND DEPOSITS

NOTE 6. RECEIVABLES (CURRENT)

NOTE 7. PROPERTY CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Consolidated Entity 2015 Land Building Total

$000s $000s $000s

Opening value - - -

Disposals at cost - - -

- - -

Opening accumulated depreciation - - -

Elimination of accumulated depreciation - - -

- - -

Net Book Value as at 30 June 2015 - - -

Consolidated Entity 2014 Land Building Total

$000s $000s $000s

Opening value 5,380 11,620 17,000

Disposals at cost (5,380) (11,620) (17,000)

- - -

Opening accumulated depreciation - - -

Elimination of accumulated depreciation - - -

- - -

Net Book Value as at 30 June 2014 - - -

Consolidated Entity 2015 2014

$000s $000s

Cash on hand and at bank 2,322 1,437

Short term money market deposits at call 9,008 18,100

Total cash assets 11,330 19,537

Consolidated Entity 2015 2014

$000s $000s

Receivables 2,585 1,805

Less: provision for doubtful debts (63) (89)

2,522 1,716

Accrued income 7,866 6,068

Total current receivables 10,388 7,784

The business entered into a commercial in confidence agreement on 18 July 2013 to dispose of the land  
and building in relation to our head office premises with the settlement occurring on 18 September 2013.

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 8. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Consolidated Entity 2015 Leasehold
Furniture 
& Fittings

Computer 
& Office 

equipment

Motor 
Vehicles

System 
Development

WIP Total

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Opening value 6,760 3,671 22,563 630 14,677 16,119 64,420

Additions at cost - - 73 - - 20,476 20,549

Disposals at cost (1,522) (1,610) (17,055) (213) (10,032) (13,503) (43,935)

Capitalisation of assets 10,002 1,861 5,417 - - (17,280) -

Capitalisation / Transfer  
of Intangible Assets

- - (1,540) - - (3,766) (5,306)

15,240 3,922 9,458 417 4,645 2,046 35,728

Opening accumulated 
depreciation

3,375 2,415 18,933 461 10,941 - 36,125

Depreciation for the year 1,035 283 1,866 59 957 - 4,200

Transfers to Intangible assets - - (439) - - - (439)

Accumulated depreciation  
on disposals

(1,520) (1,610) (16,945) (192) (10,031) - (30,298)

2,890 1,088 3,415 328 1,867 - 9,588

Net book value as at  
30 June 2015

12,350 2,834 6,043 89 2,778 2,046 26,140

Consolidated Entity 2014 Leasehold
Furniture 
& Fittings

Computer 
& Office 

equipment

Motor 
Vehicles

System 
Development

WIP Total

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Opening value 6,760 3,649 20,504 649 12,666 - 44,228

Additions at cost - 22 2,686 43 2,011 16,119 20,881

Disposals at cost - - (627) (62) - - (689)

Revaluation of asset - - - - - - -

6,760 3,671 22,563 630 14,677 16,119 64,420

Opening accumulated 
depreciation

2,893 2,230 18,053 407 10,302 - 33,885

Depreciation for the year 482 185 1,353 96 639 - 2,755

Accumulated depreciation  
on disposals

- - (473) (42) - - (515)

3,375 2,415 18,933 461 10,941 - 36,125

Net book value as at  
30 June 2014

3,385 1,256 3,630 169 3,736 16,119 28,295

Some items of software and related assets were re-classified from Computer  
and Office Equipment to Intangible Assets. These assets with a WDV value  
of $1.1M were transferred with an effective date of 1st July 2014.
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NOTE 9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTE 10. PAYABLES (CURRENT)

Consolidated Entity Total

$000s

Opening value -

Additions at cost 5,306

Disposals at cost -

5,306

Opening accumulated depreciation -

Transfer of Depreciation on asset transfer 439

Depreciation for the year 561

Accumulated depreciation on disposals -

1,000

Net book value as at 30 June 2015 4,306

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Trade creditors, unsecured 1,502 1,433

Other creditors, unsecured 4,778 5,607

Staffing costs and packages 810 1,679

Unearned revenue 758 855

Total current payables 7,848 9,574

The average credit period for trade creditors is 30 days. No interest is charged on other payables unless  
State Trustees Limited is in breach of our contractual agreements.

Terms and conditions of trade creditors vary according to contractual agreements with that creditor.

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 11. PROVISIONS

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Current provisions

Current onerous lease contracts - 79

Current employee entitlements

Annual leave

Unconditional and expected to settle within 12 months 1,938 1,981

Unconditional and expected to settle after 12 months 377 341

Long service leave

Unconditional and expected to settle within 12 months 589 530

Unconditional and expected to settle after 12 months 3,533 3,179

Total current employee entitlements 6,437 6,031

Non-current provisions

Non-current onerous lease contracts - 20

Non-current employee entitlements (long service leave) 765 1,084

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Movements in onerous lease contracts provision

Opening balance 99 365

Additional provisions recognised - -

Reductions arising from payments/other sacrifices of future economic benefits (99) (266)

Total onerous lease contracts provision - 99

Employee benefits consist of annual leave and long service leave accrued by employees. It includes on-costs 
such as payroll tax and workers compensation insurance.

Annual leave that is expected to settle after 12 months and long service leave are measured at present value.

A provision has been created to recognise onerous leases in relation to leasehold premises.  
The business no longer conducts operations from these locations.
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NOTE 12. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

NOTE 13. RESERVES

The entity has only one shareholder, the State of Victoria, which owns all the ordinary shares. This entitles 
the holder to receive dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company that is in proportion  
to the number of, and amounts paid on, the shares held. 

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements  
in the fair value of land and buildings to the extent that they offset one another.

During 2013/14, State Trustees Limited disposed of the land and buildings at  
168 Exhibition Street, Melbourne. The asset revaluation reserve was eliminated  
on the settlement of the sale of the above property with the balance transferred  
to retained earnings.

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Share capital

Ordinary shares

(12,461,664 fully paid shares, 2014: 12,461,664) 12,462 12,462

Contribution from owners 4,899 4,899

Total Share Capital 17,361 17,361

Consolidated Entity Reserve Fund
General 
Reserve

(Trustee 
Companies Act)

(ASIC / RG 166 
Requirements)

Total

2015 $000s $000s $000s

Opening balance at start of financial year 9,333 7,879 17,212 

Profits transferred to/from general reserve (65) (414) (479)

Closing balance at the end of the financial year 9,268 7,465 16,733 

2014 $000s $000s $000s

Opening balance at start of financial year 9,418 - 9,418

Profits transferred to/from general reserve (85) 7,879 7,794

Closing balance at the end of the financial year 9,333 7,879 17,212

> Asset Revaluation Reserve

> General Reserve

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 13. RESERVES

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Assets comprising the reserve fund – Trustee Companies Act

Cash at bank and on hand 2,322 -

*Short term money market deposits at call: Note 5 9,008 18,100

Total assets comprising the Reserve Fund – Trustee Companies Act 11,330 18,100

Reserve fund requirements 9,268 9,333

Surplus 2,062 8,767

Under the Trustee Companies Act 1984 (the Act), a reserve fund of not less than half  
of one per cent of the value of company-managed trust estates in Victoria must  
be provided (refer to Note 19). In the event that a liquidator, receiver or manager  
is appointed, reserve fund monies are to be paid from the trustee company according 
to Section 39(3) of the Act. Section 38 of the Act requires State Trustees Limited 
to place assets into a reserve fund. These assets must be managed consistent with 
requirements of the Trustee Act 1958.

On 30 June 1999, in keeping with legislation amending the State Trustees (State Owned 
Company) Act 1994, the corpus amounts held by Common Funds managed by the 
parent entity were paid to State Trustees Limited and transferred to a general reserve. 
The movement in the general reserve reflects a transfer of $65k to retained profits  
in 2015 (2014: transfer of $85k to retained profits).

State Trustees Limited has various financial requirements imposed by the Australian 
Securities and Investment Commission (ASIC) in relation to our Australian Financial 
Services Licence. 

This reserve was created during 2013/14 with the transfer of $7.879m from  
retained profits.

State Trustees Limited has established a reserve account to isolate our ASIC  
regulatory requirements. These financial requirements are:

• Net tangible assets;

• Surplus liquid funds;

• Adjusted surplus liquid funds; and

• A buffer for the adjusted surplus liquid funds.

As at 30 June 2015 we are compliant with our Australian Financial Services Licence 
financial requirements.

>  General Reserve – Reserve Fund  
(Trustee Companies Act) ($9,268)

> General Reserve – ASIC / RG166



46 | State Trustees Annual Report 2015

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS

NOTE 15. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The operating lease commitments reflect our lease obligations for leasehold premises. This includes the 
Little Bourke Street, Dandenong, Bendigo, Footscray and Glen Waverley leases over the non-optional lease 
period. Each lease has agreed annual increases that have been factored into the commitment and no lease 
is subject to market reviews in the non-optional lease period. There are no purchase options, or escalation 
clauses and lease renewals are subject to mutual agreement by all parties. 

Contingent assets: Nil (2014: Nil)

Contingent liabilities: Nil (2014: Nil)

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Operating lease commitments 

Not later than one year 3,773 4,070

Later than one year but not later than five years 15,484 15,568

Later than five years 54,520 58,208

Operating lease commitments 73,777 77,846

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Operating expenditure contracted for is payable as follows

Not later than one year 322 373

Later than one year but not later than five years 1,142 1,256

Later than five years 2,540 2,747

Operating expenditure commitments 4,004 4,376

Capital expenditure contracted for is payable as follows:

Not later than one year - 1,882

Later than one year but not later than five years - -

Later than five years - -

Capital expenditure commitments - 1,882

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 16. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTE 17. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Reconciliation of net cash inflow from net profit after tax  
to net cash provided by operating activities

Net profit after income tax 3,519 3,673

Add back/(subtract) non cash flows in operating result

- Loss/(gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment (86) 189

- Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,762 2,911

- Provision for doubtful debts (17) 83

- Unrealised loss/(gain) on corporate investments (273) (296)

Changes in assets and liabilities

- Increase/(decrease) in income tax equivalent payable (2,173) (874)

- Decrease/(increase) in deferred taxes 1,954 1,036

- Increase/(decrease) in employee entitlements 88 (157)

- Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables (2,719) 1,888

- Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and other assets (369) (215)

- Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors (1,534) (8)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,152 8,230

Controlled entity Place of 
incorporation

Type of 
shares

Book value of parent 
entity’s investment in $

% of shares held Contribution to the 
results in $000s

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

STL Financial  
Services Limited

Australia Ordinary 5.2m 5.2m 100 100 200 219

The consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2015 include the following 
controlled entities. The financial year of the controlled entities is the same  
as that of the parent entity.

STL Financial Services Limited has $5.2 million of paid up capital which has historically supported 
the Australian Financial Services Licence requirements in respect of minimum net tangible assets. 
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NOTE 18. PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION – STATE TRUSTEES LIMITED

NOTE 19. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

NOTE 20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Information relating to State Trustees Limited:

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Current assets 28,564 30,849

Non-current assets 42,248 37,686

Total assets 70,812 68,535

Current liabilities 17,239 16,900

Non-current liabilities 827 1,165

Total liabilities 18,066 18,065

Issued capital 17,361 17,361

Retained earnings 18,652 15,897

Asset revaluation reserve - -

General reserve 16,733 17,212

Total shareholders’ equity 52,746 50,470

Profit or loss of the parent entity 3,319 3,453

Total comprehensive income of the parent entity 3,319 3,453

State Trustees Limited (parent entity) has entered into the operating lease commitments, operating 
expenditure commitments and capital expenditure commitments as disclosed in Note 14 of these  
financial statements.

A significant portion of revenue is received from the State of Victoria for the 
Community Services Agreement. A three year agreement has been agreed and  
signed by both parties until 30 June 2016. This contract is between State Trustees 
Limited and the Department of Health and Human Services (refer to the Statement  
of Comprehensive Income). 

State Trustees Limited’s key management personnel include the Directors  
and those executives reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer.

Dino Georgiou (Chairman) 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Patrick Burroughs 1 July 2014 to 30 April 2015

Christopher Martin 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Lindsay Smith 1 July 2014 to 31 May 2015

Pam Mitchell 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Sue O’Connor 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Kathryn Watt 9 October 2014 to 30 June 2015

> Directors

> Key management personnel

The following persons held the position of Company Director during  
the past financial year:

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Income Band Total Remuneration Base Remuneration

2015 2014 2015 2014

No. No. No. No.

$20,000 - $29,999 1 2 1 2

$30,000 - $39,999 5 4 5 4

$60,000 - $69,999 - 1 - 1

$ 70,000 - $79,999 1 - 1 -

$210,000 - $219,999 - - - 1

$320,000 - $329,999 - - - -

$380,000 - $389,999 - - - -

$450,000 - $459,999 - 1 - -

Total number of Directors 7 8 7 8

Total annualised employee equivalents (AEE)** 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

Total amount $288,254 $704,041 $288,254 $465,469

*  Annualised employee equivalent is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary hours per week over  
the 52 weeks for a reporting period.

**  Anthony Fitzgerald held the position of Managing Director until 31 December 2013. Included in the  
2014 Company Directors remuneration is his salary up to his departure and an exit payment relating  
to his departure.

Craig Dent Chief Executive Officer

Paul Manning Chief Financial Officer

Angela Burton Executive General Manager, Operations

Geoff Purcell
Chief Information Officer, Information Services  
to 5 December 2014

Sally Kennedy
Executive General Manager, Information Services  
from 9 February 2015

Michelle Johnston Executive General Manager, People and Culture

Melanie Lewis Executive General Manager, Client Services

Gideon Perrott
Executive General Manager, Sales and Marketing  
from 12 August 2014

Agata Jarbin
Executive General Manager, Legal and Compliance  
from 8 September 2014

The remuneration of the Company Directors is tabled below.

The following persons held executive positions during the past financial year:



50 | State Trustees Annual Report 2015

NOTE 20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Income Band Total Remuneration Base Remuneration

2015 2014 2015 2014

No. No. No. No.

$70,000 - $79,999 - - - 1

$80,000 - $89,999 1 - 1 -

$100,000 - $109,000 - - - -

$110,000 - $119,999 - - 1 1

$120,000 - $129,999 - 1 - 2

$130,000 - $139,999 1 - - -

$140,000 - $149,999 - 1 - -

$150,000 - $159,999 - 1 - -

$160,000 - $169,999 - - - -

$170,000 - $179,999 - - - -

$180,000 - $189,999 - - 1 -

$190,000 - $199,999 1 - - -

$200,000 - $209,999 - - 1 -

$210,000 - $219,999 - - - 1

$220,000 - $229,999 2 - 3 -

$230,000 - $239,999 - 1 - -

$240,000 - $249,999 1 - - -

$250,000 - $259,999 - 1 - 1

$260,000 - $269,999 1 - 1 1

$270,000 - $279,999 - - - -

$280,000 - $289,999 - - - -

$290,000 - $299,999 1 - - -

$300,000 - $309,999 - 1 - 1

$310,000 - $319,000 - - -

$330,000 - $339,999 - 1 - -

$340,000 - $349,999 - - 1 -

$350,000 - $359,999 - 1 - -

$380,000 - $389,999 - - - -

$410,000 - $419,999 1 - - -

Total number of executives 9 8 9 8

Total annualised employee equivalents (AEE)** 7.5 7.0 7.5 7.0

Total amount $2,076,003 $1,921,459 $1,877,270 $1,489,413

**  Annualised employee equivalent is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary hours per week over the 52 
weeks for a reporting period.

The remuneration of the key executives is tabled below.

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Remuneration is based on the Government Sector Employment Remuneration  
Panel (GSERP) framework. This is structured as a total employment cost package, 
delivered as a mix of cash and prescribed non-financial benefits at the executives’ 
discretion. Executives receive no more than 80% of the CEO’s base salary  
(as determined by GSERP). In addition, they are offered short-term incentives  
to the maximum of 20% of total base remuneration.

Base remuneration includes salaries and superannuation, total remuneration  
includes all benefits payable to employees including bonus payments.

Ongoing Employees Fixed Term

 Employees 
(headcount)

Full Time 
(headcount)

Part Time 
(Headcount)

FTE FTE

Jun-14 414 345 69 390 38

Jun-15 404 328 76 381 46

 Jun-15 Jun-14

Ongoing Employees Fixed Term Ongoing Employees Fixed Term

Numbers 
(headcount)

FTE FTE  Numbers 
(headcount)

FTE FTE

Gender    Gender    

Male 140 138 15 Male 145 143 10

Females 264 243 31 Females 269 247 28

Age    Age    

Under 25 18 18 7 Under 25 16 16 1

25-34 103 94 14 25-34 111 104 18

35-44 132 125 9 35-44 137 127 8

45-54 100 96 12 45-54 103 99 10

55-64 43 40 3 55-64 40 38 2

Over 64 8 8 1 Over 64 7 6 0

• All figures reflect active employees in the last full pay period of June each year.

•  Ongoing employees refers to people engaged on an open ended contract of employment and executives engaged  
on a standard executive contract who were active in the last full pay period of June.

• FTE means full time equivalent.

•  Excluded are those on leave without pay or absent on secondment, external contractors/consultants, and temporary  
staff employed by employment agencies along with any staff on extended leave in the last pay period of June each year.

> Workforce Data Disclosure

>  Principles used to determine the  
nature and amount of remuneration
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NOTE 20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The parent entity entered into the following transactions during the financial year with 
its controlled entity. It advanced and repaid amounts on short-term inter-company 
accounts. These are repayable on demand.

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000s $000s $000s $000s

Dividend payments received - - - 273

Inter-company receivables - - 200 -

Inter-company tax related receivables - - 49 75

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000s $000s $000s $000s

inveST Diversified Income Fund 7,345 4,576 3,865 1,092

inveST Australian Equity Fund 2,755 2,476 1,529 514

Total investment in inveST funds 10,100 7,052 5,394 1,606

Fees and commissions received from

inveST Funds 5,230 4,977 5,230 4,977

Common Funds 4,976 5,055 4,976 5,055

Total fees and commissions* 10,206 10,032 10,206 10,032

All transactions with related parties are conducted on commercial terms and conditions.

State Trustees Limited received fees in its capacity as the responsible entity of the inveST Funds.  
State Trustees Limited received fees in its capacity as manager and trustee of the cash and charitable 
Common Funds.

* Fees and commission represents amounts recognised in the Profit and Loss as revenue.  
This will be net of any GST where applicable. 

>  Transactions with STL Financial  
Services Limited

> Transactions with inveST Funds

Group Investments in the inveST Funds:

> Directors’ interests There are no Directors’ interests in any of the funds managed by the Group.

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 21. CLIENT ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT AND TRUSTEESHIP

NOTE 22. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

NOTE 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Total client assets under management and trusteeship were as follows.  
These amounts are not reflected in the Statement of Financial Position  
as they are held in trust on behalf of the entities’ clients.

The audit fees are paid to Victorian Auditor Generals Office (VAGO) for the parent entity and its controlled 
entities. 2015 fees include an accrual adjustment, the estimate provided by VAGO is $165,000 for year  
ended 30 June 2015. 

The audit fees for VAGO for auditing the Common Funds and inveST Funds where State Trustees Limited acts 
as trustee and responsible entity was $116,742 (2014: $113,175). These fees are in addition to the above. 

The audit fees for VAGO for auditing State Trustees Australia Foundation and State Trustees Australia 
Foundation Open Fund where State Trustees Limited acts as trustee was $26,197 (2014: $18,900).  
These expenses are included in Note 3: Other expenses – corporate.

The audit fees for VAGO for auditing the Residents Trust Fund where State Trustees Limited acts  
as fund manager and trustee was $8,526 (2014: $11,500). These expenses are included in Note 3:  
Other expenses – corporate.

State Trustees Limited’s principal financial instruments comprise:

• cash and deposits;

• receivables;

• investments in managed investment schemes;

• advances to clients; and

• payables.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the 
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement, and the basis on which income and 
expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability 
and equity instrument above are disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Consolidated Entityv

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Investments, real estate, personal, and other assets 877,771 874,807

Client investments in Common Funds 975,922 991,723

Total assets under management and trusteeship 1,853,693 1,866,530

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

Audit of the financial report 162 154

Total 162 154

> Objectives and policies
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposits 
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The financial instruments’  
main purpose is to generate a return on the Group’s investments. The Group has 
various other financial instruments such as receivables and accounts payable that 
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, 
credit risk, market risk, and liquidity and cash flow risk. These risks are measured  
using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results from reasonably 
possible changes in the relevant risk variables. Information about these risk exposures 
at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is disclosed below. Information about 
the total fair value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well as compliance  
with established investment mandate limits, is also monitored by management  
and the Investment Committee and reported on a monthly basis.

Consolidated Entity 2015 Contractual 
financial assets/ 

liabilities 
designated at fair 

value through 
profit/loss

Contractual 
financial assets/

liabilities held-
for-trading at fair 

value through 
profit/loss

Contractual 
financial 
assets – 

loans and 
receivables

Contractual 
financial 
assets – 

available-
for-sale

Contractual 
financial 

liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Total

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Contractual financial assets

Cash and deposits - - 11,330 - - 11,330

Receivables - - 10,388 - - 10,388

Advances to clients - - 2,275 - - 2,275

Interests in inveST Funds

> Diversified income 7,345 - - - - 7,345

> Australian equity 2,755 - - - - 2,755

10,100 - 23,993 - - 34,093

Contractual financial liabilities

Accounts payable - - - - 4,838 4,838

- - - - 4,838 4,838

Consolidated Entity 2014

Contractual financial assets

Cash and deposits - - 19,537 - - 19,537

Receivables - - 7,784 - - 7,784

Advances to clients - - 2,275 - - 2,275

Interests in inveST Funds

> Diversified income 4,576 - - - - 4,576

> Australian equity 2,476 - - - - 2,476

7,052 - 29,596 - - 36,648

Contractual financial liabilities

Accounts payable - - - - 5,249 5,249

- - - - 5,249 5,249

> Financial risk management

> Categorisation of financial instruments

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015



Your interests at heart | 55 

NOTE 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

>  Net holding gain / (loss)  
on financial instruments

Consolidated Entity 2015 Net holding 
gain / (loss)

Total 
interest 

income / 
(expense)

Fee income 
/ (expense)

Impairment 
Loss

Total 

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Contractual financial assets

Financial assets designated at fair value  
through profit/loss

444 - - - 444 

Financial assets – loans and receivables - 366 - - 366 

Financial assets available-for-sale recognised  
in net result

- - - - -

Financial assets available-for-sale recognised  
in other comprehensive result

- - - - -

444 366 - - 810

Contractual financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - - - - -

Financial liabilities designated at fair value  
through profit/loss

- - - - -

- - - - -

Consolidated Entity 2014

Contractual financial assets

Financial assets designated at fair value  
through profit/loss

557 - - - 557

Financial assets – loans and receivables - 737 - - 737

Financial assets available-for-sale recognised  
in net result

- - - - -

Financial assets available-for-sale recognised  
in other comprehensive result

- - - - -

557 737 - - 1,294

Contractual financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - - - - -

Financial liabilities designated at fair value  
through profit/loss

- - - - -

- - - - -
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Consolidated Entity 2015 Interest Rate Exposure

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate %

Carrying 
Amount

Fixed Interest 
Rate

Variable 
Interest Rate

Non-Interest 
Bearing

$000s $000s $000s $000s

Financial assets

Cash and deposits 2.27% 11,330 - 11,327 3 

Receivables Nil 10,388 - - 10,388 

Advances to clients 2.98% 2,275 - 2,275 -

Interests in inveST Funds 

> Diversified income Nil 7,345 - - 7,345

> Australian equity Nil 2,755 - - 2,755 

34,093 - 13,602 20,491 

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable Nil 4,838 - - 4,838 

 4,838 - - 4,838 

Consolidated Entity 2014

Financial assets

Cash and deposits 2.80% 19,537 - 19,534 3

Receivables Nil 7,784 - - 7,784

Advances to clients 3.23% 2,275 - 2,275 -

Interests in inveST Funds 

> Diversified income Nil 4,576 - - 4,576

> Australian equity Nil 2,476 - - 2,476

36,648 - 21,809 14,839

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable Nil 5,249 - - 5,249

5,249 - - 5,249

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect 
future cashflows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Group has established 
limits on investments in interest bearing assets, which are monitored weekly.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates is limited to cash and short term deposits  
as disclosed in Note 5. The Group has no borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s Statement  
of Comprehensive Income to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,  
with all other variables held constant.

The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the effect of the assumed 
changes in interest rates on the interest income for one year, based on the floating 
rate cash and cash equivalent financial assets held at 30 June 2015.

> Interest rate risk exposures

>  Interest rate exposure  
of financial instruments

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The basis points sensitivity is based on the volatility of change in interest rates  
over the past 10 years.

$000s

Consolidated Entity 2015 - 100 basis points + 100 basis points

Carrying 
Amount

Net Result Available 
– for – sale 

revaluation 
surplus

Net Result Available 
– for – sale 

revaluation 
surplus

Contractual financial assets

Cash and deposits 11,330 (113) - 113 -

Total impact 11,330 (113) - 113 -

$000s

Consolidated Entity 2014 - 100 basis points + 100 basis points

Carrying 
Amount

Net Result Available 
– for – sale 

revaluation 
surplus

Net Result Available 
– for – sale 

revaluation 
surplus

Contractual financial assets

Cash and deposits 19,537 (218) - 218 -

Total impact 19,537 (218) - 218 -

>  Accounting Assumptions -  
Variability of interest rates

> Currency risk

> Credit risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. There is no significant direct 
foreign exchange risk exposure to the Group. 

The Group’s credit risk involves counterparties’ failure to perform contractual 
obligations that will cause the Group to incur financial losses. Concentrations of  
credit risk are minimised primarily by ensuring:

•  Transactions are undertaken with a diverse range of counterparties, a large  
amount with the Victorian Department of Health and Human Services.

•  A majority of transactions are undertaken with clients under State  
Trustees administration.

In addition, receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result 
that exposure to bad debts has not been significant. There is no material exposure  
to a group of counterparties that is expected to be affected similarly by changes  
in economic or other conditions. The carrying amount of financial assets that is 
recorded in the financial statements represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

The amounts above are before the impact of income tax.
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At 30 June, the ageing analysis of receivables is as follows:

Receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 day terms.  
An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual 
receivable is impaired. A provision for impairment loss of $62,632 (2014: $89,000)  
has been recognised by the Group.

Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:

Consolidated Entity

2015 2014

$000s $000s

At 1 July 89 6

Charge for the year 84 319

Amounts written off or reversed (110) (236)

At 30 June 63 89

Total 0-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 Days +91 days

2015 Consolidated 10,388 9,577 282 129 400

2014 Consolidated 7,784 7,375 74 49 286

Other balances within receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected that 
these other balances will be received when due. The receivables will be realised when the business finalises 
the relevant client files. The majority of these relate to deceased estates products which are still open,  
but are waiting on further actions (which include legal related issues) to be finalised with outstanding 
liabilities to be settled.

> Allowance for impairment loss
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Liquidity risk is the risk in either realising assets or otherwise raising sufficient  
funds to satisfy commitments associated with the entity’s operations. Cash flow risk 
relates to the fluctuations in future cash flows from holding financial instruments.  
Risk management guidelines adopted that are designed to minimise liquidity and  
cash flow risk are:

• Ensuring substantial cash reserves are held by the entity with major Australian banks.

• Ensuring there is no significant exposure to illiquid or thinly-traded financial instruments.

•  Applying limits to ensure that there is no concentration of liquidity risk to a particular 
counterparty or market.

To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable an effective 
controlling of future risks State Trustees Limited monitors risk through reporting  
that reflects management’s expectations of future settlement of financial  
assets and liabilities. The risk implied from the values shown in the table below, 
reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows. 

Consolidated Entity 2015 <1 months 
$000s

1-3 months 
$000s

3-12 months 
$000s

1-5 years 
$000s

>5 years 
$000s

Total  
$000s

Financial assets

Cash and deposits 11,330 - - - - 11,330 

Receivables 10,328 8 52 - - 10,388 

Advances to clients - - - 2,275 - 2,275 

Interests in inveST Funds 

> Diversified income 7,345 - - - - 7,345 

> Australian equity 2,755 - - - - 2,755 

31,758 8 52 2,275 - 34,093 

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable 4,838 - - - - 4,838 

4,838 - - - - 4,838 

Consolidated Entity 2014 <1 months 
$000s

1-3 months 
$000s

3-12 months 
$000s

1-5 years 
$000s

>5 years 
$000s

Total  
$000s

Financial assets

Cash and deposits 19,537 - - - - 19,537

Receivables 7,739 6 39 - - 7,784

Advances to clients 1,220 535 520 - - 2,275

Interests in inveST Funds 

> Diversified income 4,576 - - - - 4,576

> Australian equity 2,476 - - - - 2,476

35,548 541 559 - - 36,648

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable 5,249 - - - - 5,249

5,249 - - - - 5,249

> Liquidity and cash flow risk

>  Maturity analysis of financial assets  
and liabilities based on  
management’s expectations
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Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial  
instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. Market risk is managed and monitored using 
sensitivity analysis, and minimised through ensuring that all investment activities are 
undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and investment strategies. 

This risk exposure is managed by diversifying investments and managing to a 
conservative asset allocation model. Financial investments in growth assets  
(exposure to listed domestic equities through investment in managed investment 
schemes) are 15% and financial investments in defensive assets (exposure to cash  
and fixed interest through investments in managed investment schemes and cash 
deposits with financial institutions) are 85%. State Trustees Limited is indirectly 
exposed to market risk by holding units in the inveST Funds. The performance of  
the inveST Funds due to the market risk can impact upon the distributions received  
from our unit holdings, the underlying value of these unit holdings as well as the  
fees earned from State Trustees Limited being the responsible entity of the funds.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as a result of 
changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific  
to the individual stock or broader economic factors affecting equity markets as  
a whole. Equity price risk exposure arises from the Group’s investment in Managed 
Investment Schemes.

The effect on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive 
Income due to reasonably possible changes in market factors (as represented by the 
equity indices) with all other variables held constant, is indicated in the tables below.

$000s

Consolidated Entity 2015 - 2.7% + 2.7%

Carrying 
Amount

Net Result Available 
– for – sale 

revaluation 
surplus

Net Result Available 
– for – sale 

revaluation 
surplus

inveST Diversified Income Fund 
(UBS Australian Composite Bond Index)

7,345 (198) - 198 -

(13.50%) (13.50%)

inveST Australian Equity Fund (S&P ASX 100 Leaders 
Accumulation Fund)

2,755 (372) - 372 -

Total impact 10,100 (570) - 570 -

> Market risk

> Equity price risk

Accounting Assumptions - 
Variability of equity price

The basis points sensitivity is based on the volatility of change in the respective 
benchmark indices over the last 10 years.

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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$000s

Consolidated Entity 2014 - 2.7% + 2.7%

Carrying 
Amount

Net Result Available 
– for – sale 

revaluation 
surplus

Net Result Available 
– for – sale 

revaluation 
surplus

inveST Diversified Income Fund 
(UBS Australian Composite Bond Index)

4,576 (124) - 124 -

- 13.5% + 13.5%

inveST Australian Equity Fund (S&P ASX 100 
Leaders Accumulation Fund)

2,476 (334) - 334 -

Total impact 7,052 (458) - 458 -

The amounts above are before the impact of income tax.

> Fair value The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value  
of financial instruments by valuation technique:

•  Level 1: The fair value of financial instrument with standard terms and conditions  
and traded in active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted prices;

•  Level 2: The fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that  
are observable for the financial asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

•  Level 3: The fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing 
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using unobservable market inputs.

State Trustees Limited considers the carrying amount of financial instrument assets 
and liabilities recorded in the financial statements to be a fair approximation of their 
fair values because of the short-term nature of the financial instruments and the 
expectation that they will be paid in full.
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The table below shows that the fair values of most of the contractual financial  
assets and liabilities are the same as the carrying amounts.

Consolidated Entity 2015 Carrying 
Amount 2015

Fair Value 2015 Carrying 
Amount 2014 

Fair Value 2014

$000s $000s $000s $000s

Financial assets

Cash and deposits 11,330 11,330 19,537 19,537

Receivables 10,388 10,388 7,784 7,784

Advances to clients 2,275 2,275 2,275 2,275

Interests in inveST Funds 

> Diversified income 7,345 7,345 4,576 4,576

> Australian equity 2,755 2,755 2,476 2,476

34,093 34,093 36,648 36,648

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable 4,838 4,838 5,249 5,249

4,838 4,838 5,249 5,249

Consolidated Entity 
30 June 2015

Carrying 
Amount 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$000s $000s $000s $000s

Financial assets

Interests in inveST Funds 

> Diversified income 7,345 - 7,345 -

> Australian equity 2,755 - 2,755 -

10,100 - 10,100 -

Consolidated Entity 
30 June 2014

Carrying 
Amount 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$000s $000s $000s $000s

Financial assets

Interests in inveST Funds 

> Diversified income 4,576 - 4,576 -

> Australian equity 2,476 - 2,476 -

7,052 - 7,052 -

During the reporting period ended 30 June 2015, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2  
fair value measurements.

During the reporting period ended 30 June 2014, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2  
fair value measurements.

The fair values of the Group’s investments in unlisted unit trusts are valued on balance date at the 
redemption price as published by the underlying fund’s responsible entity.

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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NOTE 24.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

On 31 March 2015, State Trustees applied to the Australian Securities and 
Investments Commission (ASIC) for deregistration of five common funds that  
State Trustees, as responsible entity, had been operating as registered schemes, 
namely Common Fund Nos. 3, 4, 5, 11 and 12. On 14 June 2015, ASIC deregistered 
each of the five common funds. By operation of s 20A of the State Trustees  
(State Owned Company) Act 1994 (Vic.), the common funds remain governed  
by the Trustee Companies Act 1984 (Vic.) as in force on 10 May 2010. 

State Trustees Limited invests in managed funds which are not quoted in an active 
market and which may be subject to restrictions on redemptions such as lock up 
periods, redemption gates and side pockets. State Trustees Limited considers the 
valuation techniques and inputs used in valuing these funds as part of its due diligence 
prior to investment, to ensure they are reasonable and appropriate and therefore the 
net asset value (NAV) of these funds may be used as an input into measuring their fair 
value. In measuring this fair value, the NAV of the funds is adjusted, as necessary,  
to reflect restrictions and redemptions, future commitments and other specific factors 
of the fund. In measuring fair value, consideration is also paid to any transactions  
in the shares of the fund. Depending on the nature and level of adjustments needed 
to the NAV and the level of trading of State Trustees Limited, State Trustees Limited 
classifies these funds as either level 2 or level 3.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make  
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in  
the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgments and 
estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. 
Management bases its judgments and estimates on historical experience and on other 
various factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The result of 
this forms the basis of the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under 
different assumptions and conditions.

Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which 
significant judgments, estimates and assumptions are made. Actual results may  
differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions and may 
materially affect financial results or the financial position reported in future periods. 
Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions may be found  
in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

> Managed Investment Schemes

> Taxation The Group’s accounting policy for taxation requires management’s judgment as to the 
types of arrangements considered to be a tax on income in contrast to an operating 
cost. Judgment is also required in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certain 
deferred tax liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position.  
Deferred tax assets, including those arising from tax losses, capital losses and 
temporary differences are recognised only where it is considered more likely than  
not that they will be recovered, which is dependent on the generation of sufficient 
future taxable profits.
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NOTE 24.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

NOTE 25. MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

NOTE 26. STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENTS

NOTE 27. REGISTERED OFFICE

The Group has designated the classification of investments in unlisted unit trusts  
at fair value through profit or loss. The respective movements in fair value are 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fair value of investments 
in unlisted unit trusts has been determined by reference to quoted redemption prices 
as reported by the manager of these investments.

These financial statements are Consolidated Financial statements incorporating  
STL financial Services Ltd as a controlled entity. In determining whether State Trustees 
Ltd has control over another entity as defined in AASB10, consideration has been 
given to the following: 

• power over the other entity;

• exposure, or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the other entity; and

•  the ability to use its power over the other entity to affect the quantity of returns  
it receives from that other entity.

• Employee Benefits and Provisions : refer Note 2(n);

• Asset useful life / Depreciation – Refer Note 2(k).

Since the end of the financial year there has been increased volatility in global equity 
markets. Recent falls in equity prices have a downward impact on the capital values  
and therefore funds under management of the inveST Australian Equity Fund which  
forms part of State Trustees Limited’s investment portfolio.

Other than market volatility outlined above, no circumstance has risen that has affected  
or may significantly affect State Trustees Limited’s operations since 30 June 2015.

The consolidated entity provides trustee and related financial services  
and operates predominantly within Victoria.

State Trustees Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and 
domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and principal place of business is:

30 June 2014  
168 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne, Victoria, 3000

from 21 July 2014 
1 McNab Avenue 
Footscray, Victoria 3011

> Bonus provision

> Valuation of investments

>  Determination of Control  
over other entities

>  Other

The calculation of the bonus provision is comprised of three components:

• Executive contracts;

• Remuneration and benefit entitlements; and

• In line with conditions outlined in the Enterprise Agreement 2014.

Management bases its judgments and estimates on:

• Historical experience;

• Current financial and non-financial performance; and

• Other various factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances.

A portion of these estimates are yet to be approved by the Remuneration Committee.

» H.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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» DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of State Trustees Limited, I state that:

In the opinion of the Directors:

(a)  the financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance 
with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i)  giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position  
as at 30 June 2015 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian 
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001; 

(b)  the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 2(c); and 

(c)  there are reasonable grounds to believe that State Trustees Limited will be able  
to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. 

On behalf of the Board

Sue O’Connor 
Chairman 

Chris Martin 
Director

Melbourne, 25 August 2015
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Registered office and principal place of business as at 30 June 2015: 

1 McNab Avenue, Footscray 3011

Customer Service Centres

Shop 4, 157 Lonsdale Street, Dandenong 3175 
41 Edward Street, Bendigo 3550

ABN 68 064 593 148

AFSL No. 238037

(03) 9667 6444 
1300 138 672 outside of metropolitan Melbourne area

www.statetrustees.com.au

info@statetrustees.com.au

@StateTrustees

company/StateTrustees

» CONTACT
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